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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

The Board of Directors and Stockholders

F & J Prince Holdings Corporation and Subsidiaries
Sth Floor, Citibank Center

8741 Paseo de Roxas, Makati City

Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of F & J Prince Holdings Corporation and its
subsidiaries (the Group), which comprise the consolidated statements of financial position as at
December 31, 2019 and 2018, and the consolidated stalements of income, consolidated statements of
comprehensive income, consolidated statements of changes in equity and consolidated statements of cash
flows for each of the three years in the period ended December 31, 2019, and notes to the consolidated
financial statements, including a summary of signifieant accounting policies.

In our opinior, the accompanying consofidated financial statements present fairly, in ail inaterial respects,
the consolidated financial position of the Group as at December 31, 2019 and 2018, and its consolidated
{inancial performance and its consolidated cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended
December 31, 2019 in accordance with Philippine Financial Reporting Standards (PFRSs).

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audits in accordance with Philippine Standards on Auditing (PSAs). Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit
of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Group in
accordance with the Code of Ethies for Professional Accountants in the Philippines (Code of Ethics)
together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the consolidated financial
statements in the Philippines, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with
these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Key Audit Matter

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our
audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the
context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion
thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. For each atter below, our
description of how our audit addressed the matter is provided in that context,

We have fulfilled the responsibilities described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report, including in relation to these matters.
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Accordingly, our audit included the performance of proceduses designed to respond to our assessment of
the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements. The results of our audit
procedures, including the procedures performed to address the matters below, provide the basis for our
audit opinion on the accompanying consolidated financial statements.

Accounting for Investments in Associates

The Group owns 35% and 30% of Business Process Outsourcing International (BPO) and Pointwest
Technologies Corporation (PTC), respectively. These investments in associates are accounted for under
the equity method. The accounting for these investments is significant to our audit because of the
substantial amount of the Group’s investment in and its share i net earnings and other comprehensive
income of these associates. As of December 31, 2019, the investments in associates amounted 1o
£277.6 million, and the Group’s equity in net earnings and share in other comprehensive income of
associates for the year then ended amounted to 5.3 million and £26.2 million, respectively.

Refer to Note 9 for the discussion on the Investments in Associates.
Audit Response

Our audit procedures included, among others, coordinating and instructing the statutory auditors of the
associates to perform an audit on the relevant financial information of BPO and PTC for the putpose of
the Group’s consolidated financial statements. During the year, we discussed the risk assessment, audit
strategy of the statutory auditors, as well as any significant developments in the associates. We reviewed
the working papers of the statutory auditor, focusing on the procedures that will have an impact on the net
income and other comprehensive income of the Group. We recalculated the Group’s equity in net
earnings of associates based on the associates’ audited financial statements,

Other Information

Management is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the information
included in the SEC Form 20-IS (Definitive Information Statement), SEC Form 17-A and Annual Report
for the year ended December 31, 2019, but does not include the consolidated financial statements and our
auditor’s report thereon. The SEC Form 20-IS (Definitive Information Statement), SEC Form 17-A and
Annual Report for the year ended December 31, 2019 are expected to be made available to us after the
date of this auditor’s report.

Our opinion on the consolidated finaricial statements does not cover the other information and we do not
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audits of the consolidated financial statements, our responsibility is to read the
other information identified above and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to
be materially misstated.
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Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Consolidated
Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial
statements in accordance with PFRSs, and for such internal contro! as management determines is
necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial staternents, management is responsibie for assessing the Group’s
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and
using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends 1o liquidate the Group or to
cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for oversecing the Group’s financial reporting process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements as a
whole are free from maierial misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report
that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an
audit conducted in accordance with PSAs witl always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the
basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with PSAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

Identily and assess the risks of material misstalement of the consolidated financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and petform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opittion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstateinent resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting froin error,
as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of
internal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management,

Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern, If
we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to
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the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Group to cease
to continue as a going concer.

* Evaluate the overal presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

*  Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or
business activities within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements.
We are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the group audit, We remain
solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other inatters, the planned scope
and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal
control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statemnent that we have complied with relevant
ethical requiremnents regarding independence, and o commusicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought fo bear on our independence, and where applicable, related
safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that
were of most significance in the audit of the consolidated financia} statements of the current period and
are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about (he matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse eonsequences of
domng so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor’s repott is
Leovina Mae V. Chu.

SYCIP GORRES VELAYO & CO.

o 2o Wlas V. W

Leovina Mae V. Chu

Pariner

CPA Certificate No. 99910

SEC Accreditation No. 1712-A (Group A),
October 18, 2018, valid until October 17, 2021

Tax Identification No. 209-316-911

BIR Accreditation No. 08-001998-96-2018,
Febroary 2, 2018, valid uniil February 1, 2021

PTR No. 8125319, January 7, 2020, Makati City

June 15, 2020
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F & JPRINCE HOLDINGS CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION

December 31

2019 2018

ASSLETS
Current Assefs
Cash and cash equivalents (Note 6) B582,252,670 B571,371,026
Fipancial assets at fair value through profit or less (FVTPL) (Note 7} 248,646,828 204,738,312
Reccivables (Note 8) 5,900,570 7,282 381
Due from related parties (Note 17) 17,410,911 16,254,266
Current portion of financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income

(FVOCT) (Note 10) 582,302 6,945 819
Prepayments and other current assets 33,303,802 33,652,22]
Total Current Assets 888,103,083 840,244,025
Noncurrent Assets
Financial assets al FVOCI - net of current porlion {Note 10) 299,930,551 424 085,785
Investments in associales (Note 9) 277,599,655 283,463,312
Property and equipment (Note 11) 7,283,121 8,927,081
Investment properties {Note 12) 391,291,609 309,807,554
Deferred incoine tax asset (Note 15) 10,505,734 -
Other noncurrent assets (Note 17} 29,136,257 743,580
Total Noncurrent Assets 1,015,746,927 1L,117,117.312
TOTAL ASSETS £1,903,850,010  P1,957.361,337
LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
Current Liabilities
Accounts payable and accrued expenses (Note 13} B10,339,260 P8.084.887
Dividends payabie (Note 24) 6,235,209 5,139,021
Income tax payable 9,018,761 1,902,626
Provision for tegal obligation (Note 20) 5,000,000 5,000,000
Total Current Liabilities 30,593,230 20,126,534
Noncurrent Liabilities
Retirement benefit obligation {(Note 14) 18,344,610 12,927,729
Deposils payable 2,726,766 2,027,351
Deferred ineoine tax Habilities — net (Note 15) - 4,730,375
Total Noncurrent Liabilities 21,071,370 19,685,455
Total Liabilities 51,664,606 39,811,989
Equity
Commaon stock {Note 16) 481,827,653 481,827,653
Additional paid-in capital 144,759,977 144,759,977
Treasury shares (Note 16) {101.969,326) (101,777,276}
Net unrealized valuation gains {losses) on [inancial assets at FVOCT (Notes 10} (18,558,195) 17,432,186
Actuarial losses on retirement henefit obligation (Note 14) 2,959,003 (416,121)
Accumulated share in otlier comptehensive income of associates (Note 4] 90,849,242 72,344,371
Retained earnings (Note 16) 1,185,978,066 1,230,524,692
Equity Attribuiable to Equity Holders of the Parent Company 1,779,928,414 1,844,695,482
Noncontrolling Interesis 72,256,990 72,853,866
Total Equity 1,852,185404  1.917,549,348
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND EQUITY P1,903,850,010  P1,957,361,337

See accompanvitg Notes tn Consolidated Financiaf Staiements.
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¥ & J PRINCE HOLDINGS CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF INCOME

Years Ended December 31

1019 2018 2017
REVENUES AND INCOME
Interest income (Notes 6 and 10) B36,276,019 233,083,309 P37,412,772
Net foreipn exchange gains (loss) (22,852,246) 31,645,114 7,974,284
Renl income {Notes 12) 25,140,621 23,167,135 20,834,920
Fair value gains {losses) on financial assets at FVTPL (Note 7} 27,685,974 {14,162,960) 17,421,323
Equity in net earnings (Josses) of associates {Note 9) 5,344,072 (13,972,203} 40,864,501
Dividend income (Noles 7 and 10) 4,856,887 3,718,041 2,424,550
Gains (losses) on disposal of
Financial assets at FYOCI (Note {() 3,915,722 (1,339,289
Financia} assets at FVTPL (Note 7) 3,435 - 1,321,922
AFS financial agsets (Note 100 - - 2,193712
HTM investments - - 242,352
Others 78,240 692 916 137,494
80,448,724 02,832,063 130,827,840
EXPENSES
Personnel expenses:
Salarics and wapes 11,128,299 11,071,139 18,208,855
Retirement benetits (Note 14) 1,823,410 1,379,877 1,309,020
Other employee benefits 2,041,635 2,002,421 1,825,715
Deepreciation (Notes 11 and 12) 10,449,348 10,557,370 10,324,446
Professional fees 2,886,547 3,156,864 4,935,037
Condominium dues 2,031,985 2,223,850 2,365,479
Taxes and licenses 1,823,085 5,956,658 4,787,864
Utilities 1,679,898 1,841,164 1,573,613
Expected credit losses (Note 10) 674,413 754,082 -
Bank charges 508,954 777,145 733,900
LEntcrtainment, amuseinent and recreation 400,343 514,178 260,431
Impairment losses on receivables and due fiom related
parties (Notes 8 and 17} - - 104,000
Others 1,257,456 1,619,814 1,621,554
36,705,373 41,854,562 40,049,914
INCOME BEFORE INCOME TAX. 43,743,351 20,977,501 98,777,926
PROVISION FOR (BENEFIT FROM) INCOME TAX
(Note 15)
Current 14,355,311 6,065,053 13,397,607
Defered (4,261,351 1,826,571 (2,019,454)
10,093,960 7,801,624 11,378,153
NET INCOME 133,649,391 £13,085877 P79,399, 773
NET INCOME ATTRIBUTABLE TO
Equity holders of the parcat B32,205,281 B12,088,289 #77,729,401
Noncentrolling interests 1,444,110 097,588 1,670,372
P33,649,391 Ri3,085877 R76,390 773
Basic/Diluted Earnings Per Share for Net Income
Attributable to Equity Holders of the Parent Company
{Note 18) £3.08 R0.O3 £0.20

Sec accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
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F & J PRINCE HOLDINGS CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

Years Ended December 31
2019 2018 2017

NET INCOME 233,649,391 213,085,877 779,399,773

OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
ftems that will be reclassified to profit or loss:
Net unrealized valuation gains {losses) on financial assets at
FVOC, net of tax effect (Notes 10 and 15) 20,724,595 (29,707,738) -
Net unrealized vatuation pains on AFS financial assets, net of

tax effect {(Notes 10 and 15) - - 47,922,567
Cumulative translation adjustment (Note 9) (7,733,503) 13,757,840 {313,263)
Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss:

Net unrealized valuation losses on financial assets at FVOCE,

net of tax effect (Notes 10 and 15) {57,777,689) {19,552,306) -
Actuarial gains (losses) on retirement benefit obligation,

net of tax effect (Notes 14 and 15) {2,670,495) 369,152 377,677
Share in other comprehensive income of associates

{Note 9) 26,238,374 8,210,944 25,827,365

{21,224,718) (26,922,108) 73,814,346
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (LOSS) P12,424,673  (P13,830,231) P153,214,119
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (LOSS)

ATTRIBUTABLE TO:

Equity holders of the parent P12,176,889  (P13,118,809) P147,983,362
Noncontrolling interests 274,784 (717,422) 5,230,757

P12,424,673  (B13,836,231) P153214,119

See accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
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K & J PRINCE HOLDINGS CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

Years Ended December 31

2019 2018 2017
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Income before incomne tax £43,743,352 £20,977,501 R0, 777,926
Adjustments for:
Interest income (Notes 6 and 10) (36,276,019) (33,083,309  (37,412,772)
Fair value losses (gains) on financial assets at FVTPL
(Nate 7) (27,685,974} 14,162,960 (17,421,323)
Depreciation (Notes 11 and 12) 10,449,347 10,557,370 10,324,446
Net unrealized foreign exchange gains {7,844,775) {11,133,63}) (3,494,399)
Equity in net Josses (earnings) of associates (Note 9) (5,344,072) 13,972,203 (40,804,501)
Dividend incomme (Notes 7 and 10} {4,856,887) {3,718,041} {2,424,550)
Losses (gains) on disposal of:
Financial assets at FYOCI (Note 10) (3,915,722) 1,339,289 -
Financial assets at FVTPL (Note 7) {3,435) (1,321,922)
AFS financial agsets (Note 10) - - {2,193,712)
Movement in retirement benefit obligation (Note 14) 1,071,702 1,379,877 1,291,246
Impaimment Josses on FVOCI investiments 640,692 - -
Impainment losses on receivables and due from related
parties (Notes 8 and 17) - o~ 104,600
Recovery of allowance for impairnient losses - (137,582) —
Operating income {losses) before working capital changes 36,021,791) 14,316,637 (2,035,561)
Decreasc (increase) in:
Receivables 121,644 359,300 {1,104,874)
Due from refated pariics {21,503) 4,723 118,394
Prepayments and other current assets 348,419 (15,033,291 (3,089,771}
Increase (deerease} in;
Accounts payable and accrued expenses 2,254,373 (891,359) 5,580,937
Deposits payablc 699,415 - -
Proceeds from disposal of:
Financjal assets at FVOCI (Note 10) 94,533,553 53,624,191 -
Financiat agsets at FVTPL (Note 7) 7,352,604 . 13,030,049
AFS financial assets (Note 10) - - 160,993,084
Additions to:
Financial assets at FVTPL (Note 7) (23,571,711)  (67,342,773) (63,978,749
Financiaf assets at FVOCI (Note 10) (7,638,469)  (22,141,284)  (214,648,554)
Net cash generated from (used in) operations 44,056,534 (37,103,856}  (105,735,045)
Dividends received 33,434,345 45,804,053 51,604,155
Interest received 37,530,186 32,725,593 39,450,508
Income taxes paid (7,239,176) (12,037,563 (10,924,819)
Net cash flows from (used in) operating activities 107,781,889 29,388,227 (25,605,201)
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Additions to:
Investment properties {(Note 12) (189,876) (141,663,846)  (79,051,821)
Property and equipment {(Note 11) {9,567) 2,177 (2,146,428)
Increase in other noncurrent asscts (Note 17) (28,392,677) — (13,642,824)
Net cash flows used in investing activities (28,592,150) (141,666,023} (94,841,073}

{(Forward)
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Years Ended December 31

2019 2018 2017

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Dividends paid (Note 16} (B75,655,719) (P78,050,892) (176,188,717)
Dividends to noncontrolling interests (844,600) (513,114 (4,454,183)
Acquisition of treasury shares (Note 16) {192,050) (830,320 (1,277,479)
Net cash flows used in financing activitics (76,692,429) (79,394,326}  (81,920,379)
EFFECF OF EXCHANGE RATE CHANGES ON CASH

AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 8,184,334 9,477,714 1,362,037
NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH AND CASH

EQUIVALENTS 10,881,644  (182,194,408) (201,004,616)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

AT BEGINNING OF YEAR 571,371,026 753.565,434 954,570,050
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

AT END OF YEAR (Notc 6) B582,252,670 P571,371,026  PR753,565,434

See accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
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F & J PRINCE HOLDINGS CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

I. Corporate Information

F & ] Prince Holdings Corporation (the Parent Company) was registered with the Philippine
Securities and Exchange Commission (SEC) on February 18, 1971. ts primary purpose is to
purchase, subscribe for or otherwise acquire and own, hold, use, sell, assign, transfer, motlgage,
pledge, exchange, or otherwise dispose of real and personal property of every kind and description,
including, but not fimited to, land, building, condominium units, shares of stock, bonds, debentures,
notes, evidence of indebtedness and other securities, contracts or obligations of any corporation and
associations, domestic or foreign. The term for which the Parent Company is to exist is 50 years from
and afler the date of incorporation.

The Parent Company’s shares of stock are listed in and traded through the Philippine Stock Exchange
(PSE). The principal activities of its subsidiaries are described in Note 2.

The registered office address of the Parent Company is 5th Floor, Citibank Center, 8741
Paseo de Roxas, Makati City.

The consolidated financial statements of the Parent Company and its subsidiaries {collectively
referred to as the “Group”) as of December 31, 2019 and 2018 and for each of the three years in the
period ended December 31, 2019 were authorized for issue by the Board of Directors (BOD) on June
15, 2020,

2. Basis of Preparation, Statement of Compliance and Basis of Consolidation

Basis of Preparation

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost basis, except for
financial assets at FVTPL and certain investments in debt and equity securities that have been
measured at fair value (see Notes 7 and 10). The consolidated financial statements are presented in
Philippine peso, which is the Parent Company’s functional currency, and rounded off to the nearest
peso, except when otherwise indicated.

Statement of Compliance
The consolidated financial staterents of the Group have been prepared in compliance with Philippine
Financial Reporting Standards (PFRSs).

Basis of Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements comprise the financial statements of the Parent Company and
its subsidiaries as of December 31, 2019 and 2018. Contro} is achieved when the Group has power
over the mvestee (i.e., existing rights that give it the cutrent ability to direct the relevant activities of
the investee), is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the investee and
has the ability to affect those returns through its power over the investee.

The Group re-assesses whether or not it controls an investee if facts and circumstances indicate that
there are changes to one or more of the three elements of control. Consolidation of a subsidiary
begins when the Group obtains control over the subsidiary and ceases when the Group losses confrol
of the subsidiary. Assets, liabilities, income and expenses of a subsidiary acquired or disposed of
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during the year arc included in the consolidated financial statements from (he date the Group gains
conirot until the date the Group ceases to control the subsidiary.

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive income (OCI) are attributed to the equity
holders of the parent of the Group and to the noncontrolling interests, even if this results in the
noncontrolling interests having a deficit balance. When necessary, adjustments are made to the
financial statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policics in line with the Group’s
accounting policies. All infra-group assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash flows
relating fo transactions between members of the Group are eliminated in ful! on consolidation.

A change in the ownership interest of a subsidiary, without loss of control, is accounted for as an
equity lransaction.

If the Group loses controt over a subsidiary, it derecognizes the related assets (inciuding goodwiil),
hiabilities, noncontrolling interest and other components while any resultant gain or loss 1s recognized
in consolidated statements of income. Any investment retained is recogtiized at fair value.

Transactions involving noncontrolling interest in a subsidiary without a change of control are
accounted for as equity transactions. Any excess or deficit of consideration paid over the carrying
amount of nonconirolling interest acquired is recognized in equity of the Group.

The financial statements of the subsidiaries are prepared for the same reporting period as the Parent
Company. Consolidated financial statements are prepared using uniform accounting policies for like
transactions and other events in similar circumstances. All intercompany balances and transactions,
including intercompany profits and losses, are eliminated.

Details on the subsidiaries as of December 31, 2019 and 2018 are as follows:

Country of  Percentage
Incorporation of Ownership

Magellan Capital Holdings Corporation (MCHC)* Philippines 94.37%
Pinamucan Industria} Estates, Inc. (PIEI) Philippines 10044
Malabrigo Corporation (MC) Philippines 100%
Magellan Capital Realty Development Corporation (MCRDC)**  Philippines 100%
Magellan Capital Trading Corporation (MCTC)** Philippines 100%

*Intermediate parent company
**Non-operational since incorporation.

MCHC

MCHC is a holding company involved in investing real and personal properties of every kind,
including, but not fimited to, land, buildings, condominium units, shares of stack, bonds, and other
securities of any corporation or association, domestic or foreign. MCHC was registered with SEC on
November 6, 1990. MCHC has investments in subsidiaries, mainly PIElL, MC, MCRDC and MCTC.

PIEI
PIEI was organized primarily as a real estate developer and was registered with the SEC on
May 5, 1993,

MC

MC was organized primarily to purchase, operate, maintain and sell coal mines and their products and
by-products. MC was registered with the SEC on August 31, 1993,
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MCRDC

MCRDC was organized to purchase, subscribe for, or otherwise acquire and own, hold, use, sell,
assign, transfer, mortgage, pledge, exchange or otherwise dispose of shares of stock, bonds,
debentures, notes, evidence of indebtedness and other securities, coniracts and obligations of any
corporation or corporations, domestic or foreign. MCRDC was registered with the SEC on
November 14, 1990 and has been non-operational since incorporation.

MCTC

MCTC was organized to conduct and carry on the business of buying, selfing, distributing and
marketing at wholesale and retail all kinds of goods, commodities, wares and merchandise. MCTC
was registered in the SEC on January 7, 1991 and has been non-operational since incorporation.

3. Changes in Accounting Policies and Disclosures

The accounting policies adopted are consistent with those of the previous financial year, except for
the adoption of the following amended standards which were adopted as of January 1, 2019.

* Amendments to PFRS 9, Prepayment Features with Negative Compensation

Under PFRS 9, a debt instrument can be measured at amortized cost or at fair value through other
comprehensive income, provided that the contractual cash flows are ‘solely payments of principa}
and interest on the principal amount outstanding’ (the SPP1 criterion) and the instrument is held
within the appropriate business model for that classification. The amendments to PFRS 9 clarify
that a financial asset passes the SPPI criterion regardless of the event or circumstance that canses
the early termination of the contract and irrespective of which party pays or receives reasonable
compensation for the early termination of the eontract.

These amendments had no impact on the consolidated financial statements of the Group.
o PFRS 16, Leases

PFRS 16 sets out the principles for the recognition, measurement, presentation and disclosure of
leases and requires lessees to account for all leases under a single on-balance sheet model similar
to the accounting for finance leases under PAS 17, Leases. The standard includes two
recognition exemptions for lessees - leases of ‘low-value” assets (e.g., personal computers) and
short-term Jeases (i.e., leases with a Jease term of 12 months or less).

At the commencement date of a lease, a lessee will recognize a Hability to make lease payments
(i.e., the lease liability) and an asset representing the right to use the underlying asset during the
lease term (i.e,, the right-of-use asset), Lessees will be required to separately recognize the
interest expense on the lease liability and the depreciation expense on the right-of-use asset.

Lessees will be also required to remeasure the lease liability upon the occurrence of certain cvents
(e.£., a change in the lease term, a change in future lease payments resulting from a change in an
index or rate used to determine those payments). The lessee wil} generally recognize the amount
of the remeasurement of the lease liability as an adjustment to the right-of-use asset.

Lessor accounting under PFRS 16 is substantially unchanged from today’s accounting under
PAS 17. Lessors will continue to classify all leases using the same classification principle as in
PAS 17 and distinguish between two types of leases: operating and finance leases.
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The new accounting standard did not have any significant impact to the consolidated financial
statements because the Group did not enter into any lease agreement as a lessee.

Amendments to PAS 19, Employee Benefits, Plan Amendment, Curtailment or Seitlement

The amendments to PAS 19 address the accounting when a plan amendment, curtailment or
settlement occurs during a reporting period. The amendments specify that when a plan
amendment, curtailment or settlement occurs during the annual reporting period, an entity is
requited fo:

*  Determine current service cost for the remainder of the period after the plan amendiment,
curtailment or settlement, using the actuarial assumptions used to remeasure the net defined
benefit liability (asset) reflecting the benefits offered under the plan and the plan assets after
that event

*+  Determine net interest for the remainder of the period after the plan amendment, curtailiment
or settlement using: the net defined benefit lability (asset) reflecting the benefits offered
under the plan and the plan assets after that event; and the discount rate used to remeasure
that net defined benefit liability (asset).

The amendments also clarify that an entity first determines any past service cost, or a gain or foss
on settiement, without considering the effect of the asset ceiling. This amount is recognized in
profit or loss. An entity then determines the cffect of the asset ceiling afier the plan amendment,
curtailinent or settlement. Any change in that effect, excluding amounts included in the net
interest, is recognized in other comprehensive income.

The amendments had no impact on the consolidated financial statements of the Group as it did
not have any plan amendments, curtailments, or settlements during the period.

Amendments to PAS 28, Long-tertn Interests in Associates and Joint Ventures

The amendments clarify that an entity applies PERS 9 to long-term interests in an associate or
joint venture to which the equity method is not applied but that, in substance, form part of the net
invesiment in the associate or joint venture (long-term interests). This clarification is relevant
because it implies that the expected credit loss model in PFRS 9 applies to such long-term
interests.

The amendments also clarified that, in applying PFRS 9, an entity does not take account of any
losses of the associate or joint venture, or any impairment losses on the net investnent,
recognized as adjustinents to the net investment in the associate or joint venture that arise from
applying PAS 28, Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures.

These amendments had no impact on the consolidated financial statements as the Group does not
have long-term interests in associates and joint venture to which equity method is not applied.

Philippine Interpretation IFRIC 23, Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments
The Interpretation addresses the accounting for income taxes when tax treatments involve
uncertainty that affects the application of Philippine Accounting Standards (PAS) 12, Income

Taxes, and does not apply to taxes or levies outside the scope of PAS 12, nor does it specifically
include requirements relating to interest and penalties associated with uncertain tax treatments.
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The interpretation specifically addresses the following:

*  Whether an entity considers uncertain tax treatments separately

e The assumptions an entity makes about the examination of tax freatments by taxation
authorities

* How an entity determines taxable profit (tax loss}, tax bases, unused tax losses, unused
tax credils and tax rates

* How an entity considers changes in facts and circumstances

The entity is required to determine whether to consider each uncertain tax treatment separately or
together with one or more other uncertain tax treatments and use the approach that better predicts
the resolution of the uncertainty. The entity shall assume that the taxation authority will examine
amounts that it has a right to examine and have full knowledge of all related information when
making those examinations. If an entity concludes that it is not probable that the taxation
authority will accept an uncerfain tax treatrent, it shall reflect the effect of the uncertainty for
each uncertain tax treatment using the method the entity expects to better predict the resolution of
{he uncertainty.

Upon adoption of the Interpretation, the Group has assessed wheter it has any uncertain tax
position. The Group applies significant judgement in jdentifying uncertainties over its income tax
treatments. The Group determined, based on its assessment, that it s probable that its uncertain
tax treatments will be accepted by the taxation authorities, Accordingly, the interprefation did not
have an impact on the Group’s consolidated financial statements.

Annual Improvements to PFRSs 2015-2017 Cycle

* Amendments to PFRS 3, Business Combinations, and PFRS 11, Joint Arran genments,
Previously Held Interest in a Joint Operation

The amendments clarify that, when an entity obtains control of a business that is a joint
operation, it applies the requirements for a business combination achieved in stages,
including remeasuring previously held interests in the assets and liabilities of the joint
operation at fair valve. In doing so, the acquirer remeasures its entire previously held interest
in the joint operation.

A party that participates in, but does not have joint control of, a joint operation might obtain
joint control of the joint operation in which the activity of the Jjoint operation constitutes a
business as defined in PFRS 3. The amendments clarify that the previously held interests in
that joint operation are not remeasured.

An entity applies those amendments to business combinations for which the acquisition date
is on or after the beginning of the first annual reporting period beginning on or after January
1, 2019 and to transactions in which it obtains joint control on or after the beginning of the
first annual reporting period beginning on or after January 1, 2019, with early application
permitied. These amendments had no impact on the consolidated financial statements of the
Group as there is no transaction where joint control is obtained.
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*  Amendments to PAS 12, Income Tax Consequences of Payments on Financial Instruments
Classified as Equity

The amendments clarify that the income tax consequences of dividends are linked more
directly to past transactions or events that generated distributable profits than to distributions
to owners. Therefore, an entity recognizes the income tax consequences of dividends in profit
or loss, other comptehensive income or equity according to where the entity originally
recognized those past {ransactions or events,

An entity applies those amendments for annual reporting periods beginning on or after
January 1, 2019, with early application is permitted. These amendments had no impact on the
consolidated financial statements of the Group because dividends declared by the Group do
not give rise to tax obligations under the current tax laws.

* Amendments to PAS 23, Borrowing Costs, Borrowing Costs Eligible for Capitalization

The amendments clarify that an entity treats as part of general borrowings any borrowing
originally made to develop a qualifying asset when substantially all of the activities necessary
to prepare that asset for its intended use or sale are complete,

An entity applies those amendments to borrowing costs incurred on or after the beginning of
the annual reporting period in which the entity first applies those amendments. An enlify
applies thosc amendments for annual reporting periods beginming on or after January 1, 2019,
with carly application permitted.

The amendments docs not have impact on the consolidated financial statements of the Group
since they have no borrowings.

Effective Beginning on or after January 1, 2020

Amendments to PFRS 3, Definition of a Business

The amendments to PFRS 3 clarify the minimum requirements to be a business, remove the
assessmeni of a market participant’s abitity to replace missing elements, and narrow the
definition of outputs. The amendments also add guidance to assess whether an acquired process
is substantive and add illustrative exampics. An optional fair value concentration test is
introduced which permits a simplified assessment of whether an acquired set of activities and
assets is not a business.

An entity applies those amendments prospeetively for annual reporting periods beginning on or
after January 1, 2020, with earlier application permitted.

Thesc amendments will apply on furure business combinations of the Group.

Amendments to PAS 1, Presentation of Financial Statements, and PAS 8, Accounting Policies,
Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors, Definition of Material

The amendments refine the definition of 1naterial in PAS 1 and align the definitions used across

PFRSs and other pronouncements. They are intended to improve the understanding of the
existing requirements rather than to significantly impact an entity’s materiality judgements.
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An entity applies those amendments prospectively for annual reporting periods beginning on or
after January 1, 2020, with carlier application permitted.

Effective Beginning on or afier January 1, 2023

*  PIFRS 17, Insurance Contracts
PFRS 17 is a comprehensive new accounting standard for insurance contracts covering
recognition and measurement, presentation and disclosure. Once effective, PFRS 17 wit] replace
PFRS 4, Insurance Contracts. This new standard on insurance contracts applies {o all {ypes of
insurance contracts (i.e., life, non-life, direct insurance and re-insurance), regardless of the type of
entities that issue them, as well as to certain guarantees and financial instruments with
discretionary participation features. A few scope exceptions will apply.

The overall objective of PFRS 17 is to provide an accounting model for insurance contracts that
is more useful and consistent for insurers. In contrast to the requirements in PERS 4, which are
targely based on grandfathering previous local accounting policies, PFRS 17 provides a
comprehensive modet for insurance contracts, covering all relevant accounting aspects. The core
of PFRS 17 js the general model, supplemented by:

* A gpecific adaptation for contracts with direct participation features (the variable fee
approach}

* A simplified approach {the premium aliocation approach) mainly for short-duration
contracts

PFRS 17 is effective for reporting periods beginning on or afier January 1, 2023, with
comparative figures required. Early application is permitted.

These amendments have no significant impact on the consolidated financial statements.
Deferred effectivity

* Amendments to PFRS 10, Consolidated Financial Statements, and PAS 28, Sale or Contribution
of dssets between an Investor and its Associate or Joint Venture

The amendments address the conflict between PFRS 10 and PAS 28 in dealing with the loss of
control of a subsidiary that is sold or contributed to an associate or joint venture. The
amendments clarify that a full gain or loss is recognized when a transfer to an associate or joint
venture involves a business as defined in PFRS 3. Any gain or loss resulting from the sale or
contribution of assets that does not constitute a business, however, is reco gnized only to the
extent of unrelated investors’ interests in the associate or joint venture,

On January 13, 2016, the Financial Reporting Standards Council deferred the original effective
date of January 1, 2016 of the said amendments until the Intemational Accounting Standards
Board (IASB) completes its broader review of the research project on equity accounting that may
result in the simplification of accounting for such transactions and of other aspects of accounting
for associates and joint ventures.

The Group has not early adopted any other standards, interpretations or amendments that has been
issued but is not yet effective.
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Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Current versus Noncurrent Classification
The Group presents assets and liabilities in the consolidated statements of financial position based on
current or noncurrent classification. An asset is classified as current when it is:

Expected to be realized or intended to be sofd or consumed in normal operating cycle;

Hcld primarily for the purpose of trading;

Expected to be realized within twelve months after the reporting period; or

Cash and cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at
least twelve months after the reporting period.

Al] other assels are classified as noncurrent.
A ltability is classified as current when:

It is expected to be settled in the normal operating cycle;

It is held primarily for the purpose of trading;

Itis due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period; or

There is no uneonditional right {o defer the setilement of the liability for at least twelve months
after the reporting period.

The Group classifies all other liabilities as noncurrent.
Deferred income tax assets and liabilitics are classified as noncurrent.

Fair Value Measurement

Farr value is the estimated price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to {ransfer a liability in
an ordetly transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value
measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability
lakes place either:

¢ In the principal market for the asset or liability, or
¢ In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or Lability.

The principal or the most advaniageous market must be accessible by the Group.

The fair value of an asset or a Hability is measured using the assuinptions that market participants
would use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their best
economic interest.

A fair value measurement of a nonfinancial asset takes into account a market participants ability to
generate economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another
market participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use.

The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which

sufficient data are available to measure fair value, maximizing the use of relevant observable inputs
and mninimizing the use of unobservable inputs.

AN




-9.

All assets and labilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the consolidated financial
statements are categorized within the fair vatue hierarchy, described as fotlows, based on the lowest
level mput that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:

e Level I: Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities

* Level 2: Valuation techniques for which the lowest fevel input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is directly or indirectly observable

* Level 3: Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is unobservable

For assets and liabilities that are recognized in the consolidated financial statements on a tecurring
basis, the Group determines whether transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by
re-assessing categorization (based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting period.

For the purpose of fair vatue disclosures, the Group has determined classes of assets and liabilities on
the basis of the nature, characteristics and risks of the asset or liability and the level of the fair value
hierarchy as explained above.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash includes cash on hand and in banks. Cash equivalents are short-term, highly liquid investments
that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash with original maturities of three months or less
from date of placements and that are subject to an insignificant risk of change in value.

Financial Instruiments (Effective Until December 31, 2017)
A Tinancial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial
liability or equity instrument of another entity.

Financial Assets. Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as financial assets at FVPL,
loans and receivables, held-to-maturity (HTM) investments, AFS financial assets, or as derivatives
designated as hedging instruments in an effective hedge, as appropriate. All financial assets are
recognized initially at fair value plus, except in the case of financial assets not recorded at FVPL,
transaction costs that are attributable to the acquisition of the financial asset.

Purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of asscts within a time frame established by
regulation or convention in the market place (regular way trades) are recognized on the trade date,
1.e., the date that the Group commits to purchase or sell the asset,

a. Financial Assets at FVPL
Financial assets at FVPL include financial assets held for trading and financial assets designated
upon initial recognition at FVPL. Financial assets are classified as held for trading if they are
acquired for the purpose of seiling or repurchasing in the near term. Derivatives, including
separated embedded derivatives, are also classified as held for trading unless they are designated
as effective hedging instruments as defined by PAS 39. Financial assets at FVPL are carried in
the consolidated statements of financial position at fair value with net changes in fair value
presented as fair value gains or losses on financial asset at FVPL in the consolidated statements
of income.

Derivatives embedded in host contracts are accounted for as separate derivatives and recorded at
fair value if their economic characteristics and risks are not closely related to those of the host
contracts and the host contracts are not held for trading or designated at FVPL. These embedded
derivatives are measured at fair value with changes in fair vajue recognized in the consolidated
statements of income.
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Reassessment only occurs if there is either a change in the terms of the contract that si ghificantly
modifies the cash flows that would otherwise be required or a reclassification of a financial asset
out of FVPL.

The Group’s investments in trading securities are classified under financial assets at FVPL as of
December 31, 2017 {see Note 7).

Loans and Receivables

Loans and reeeivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments
that are not quoted in an active market. Afier initial measurement, Joans and receivables are
subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective interest rate (EIR} method, less any
allowance for impairment, Amortized cost is calculated taking into account any discount or
premium on acquisition and includes fees that are an integral part of the EIR. The effective
interest amortization is included as interest income in the consolidated statements of income. The
losses arising from impairment are recognized in profit or loss.

The Group’s cash and cash equivalents, receivables and due from refated parties are classified as
loans and receivables as of December 31, 2017 (see Notes 6, 8, and 17.

AFS Financial Assets

AFS financial assets include equity investments and debt investments. Equity investments
classiflied as AFS financial assets are those that are neither classified as held for trading nor
designated at FVPL. Debt securities in this category are those that are intended to be held for an
indefinite period of time and that maybe sold in response to needs for liquidity or in response to
changes in the market conditions.

After initial measurement, AFS financial assets are subsequently measured at fair value with
unrealized pains or fosses recognized in the consolidated statements of comprehensive income
until the investment is derecognized, at which time the cumulative gain or loss is reco gmized in
the consolidated statements of income. When the investment is determined t¢ be impaired, the
cumulative loss in the consolidated statements of comprehensive income is reclassified to the
consolidated statements of income. as impairment loss on AFS financial assets. Interest earmed
whilst holding AFS financial assets is reported as interest income using the EIR method.

Equity securities classified as AFS financial assets that do not have quoted market price in an
active market and whose fair value cannot be reliably measured are carried at cost.

The Group evaluates whether the ability and intention to sell its AFS financial assets in the near
term 1s still appropriate. When, in rare circumstances, the Group is unable to trade these financial
assels due to inactive markets, the Group may elect to reclassify these financial assets if the
management has the ability and intention to hold the assets for foreseeable future or until
maturity.

In the case of a financial asset with a fixed maturity, the fair value at the date of reclassification
becomes its new amortized cost and any previous gain or loss on the asset that has been
recognized in the consolidated statements of comprehensive income is amortized to the
consolidated statements of income over the remaining life of the investment using the EIR. Any
difference between the new amortized cost and the maturity amount is also amortized over the
remaining life of the asset using the EIR. If the asset is subsequently determined to be impaired,
then the amount recorded in the consolidated statements of comprehensive income is reclassified
to the consolidated statements of income.
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In the case of a financial asset that does not have a fixed maturity, the pain or loss shall remain in
OCI until the financial asset is sold or otherwise disposed of, when it shali be recognized in profit
or loss. If the financial asset is subsequently impaired, any previous gain or loss that has been
recognized in the consolidated statements of comprehensive income is recognized in the
consolidated statements of income,

The Group’s AFS financial assets consist of debt and equity securities as of December 3 1, 2017
(see Note 10),

Impairment of Financial Assets

The Group assesses, at each reporting date, whether there is objective evidence that a financial asset
or a group of financial assets is impaired. An impairment exists if one or more evenis that has
occurred since the initial recognition of the asset (an incurred ‘loss event’), has an impact on the
estimated future cash flows of the financial asset or the group of financial assets that can be reliably
estimated. Evidence of impairment may include indications that the debtors or a group of debtors is
experiencing significant financial difficulty, default or delinquency in interest or principal payments,
the probability that they will enter bankruptcy or other financial reorganization and observable data
indicating that there is a measurable decrease in the estimated future cash flows, such as changes in
arrears or economic conditions that correlate with defaults.

a. Financial Assets Carried at Amortized Cost
For assets carried at amortized cost, the Group first assesses whether impairment exists
individually for financial assets that are individually significant, or collectively for financial
assets that are not individually significant. If the Group determines that no objective evidence of
impairment exists for an individually assessed financial asset, whether significant or not, it
includes the asset in a group of financial assets with similar credit risk characteristics and
collectively assesses them for impairment. Assets that are individually assessed for impairment
and for which an impairment foss is, or continues to be, recognized are not included in a
collective assessment of impairment.

The amnount of any impairment loss identified is measured as the difference between the asset’s
carrying amount and the present value of estimated future cash flows (excludin g future expected
credit losses that have not yet been incurred). The present value of the estimated future cash
flows is discounted at the financial asset’s origina} EIR.

The carrying amount of the asset is reduced through the use of an allowance account and the loss
is recognized in the consolidated statements of income. Interest income reco gnized continucs (o
be accrued on the reduced carrying amount and is accrued using the rate of interest used to
discount the future cash flows for the purpose of measuring the impairment loss. Loans together
with the associated allowance are written off when there is no realistic prospect of future recovery
and all collateral has been realized or has been transferred to the Group. If, ina subsequent year,
the amount of the estiinated impairment loss increases or decreases because of an event occurring
after the impairment was recognized, the previously recognized impairment loss is increased or
reduced by adjusting the allowance account. If a write-off is jater recovered, the recovery is
credited to reversal of impairment loss in the consolidated statements of income.

b. AFS Financial Assets
For AFS financial assets, the Group assesses at each reporting date whether there is abjective

evidence that an investment or a group of investments is impaired.

In the case of equity investinents classified as AFS financial assets, objective evidence would
include a significant or prolonged decline in the fair value of the investment below its cost.
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‘Significant’ is evaluated against the original cost of the investment and ‘prolonged’ against the
period in which the fair vatue has been below its original cost. When there is evidence of
impairment, the cumulative loss measured as the difference between the acquisition cost and the
current fair value, less any impairment loss on that investment previously recognized is removed
from OCI and recognized in profit or loss. Impairment losses on cquity investments are not
reversed through the consolidated statements of income; increases in their fair value after
impairment are recognized in the consolidated statements of comprehensive income.

The determination of what is ‘significant’ or ‘prolonged’ requires judgment. In making this
Jjudgment, the Group evaluates, among other factors, the duration or extent to which the fair value
of an investment is less than its cost.

In the case of debt instruments classified as AFS financial assets, the impairment is assessed
based on the same criteria as financial assets carried at amortized cost. However, the amount
recorded for impairment is the cumulative loss measured as the differeice between the amortized
cost and the current fair value, less any impairment loss on that investment previously recognized
in the consolidated staterments of income.

Future inferest income continues to be accrued based on the reduced carrying amount of the asset,
using the rate of intcrest used to discount the future cash flows for the purpose of measuring the
impairment loss. Interest income is recognized as part of profit or loss. If, in a subsequent year,
the fair value of a debt insttument increases and the increase can be objectively related to an
event occurring after the impairment loss was recognized in profit or loss, the impairment loss is
reversed through the consolidated statements of income,

Financial Instruments (Effective Starting January 1, 2018)

Financial Assety

Initial Recognition and Measurement. Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as
subsequently measured at amortized cost, fair value through other comprehensive income, and fair
value through profit or loss.

The classification of financial assets at initial recognition depends on the financial asset’s contractuaf
cash flow characteristics and the Group’s business mode! for managing them. With the exception of
trade receivables that do not contain a significant financing component or for which the Group has
applied the praetical expedient, the Group initially measures a financial asset at its fair value plus, in
the case of a financial asset not at fair value through profit or foss, transaction costs, Trade
receivables that do not contain a significant financing component or for which the Group has applied
the practical expedient are measured at the transaction price determined under PFRS 15.

In order for a financial asset to be classified and measured at amortized cost or fair value through
other comprehensive income, it needs to give rise to cash flows that are ‘solely payments of principal
and interest (SPPI)’ on the principal amount outstanding. This assessment is referred to as the SPPI
test and is performed at an instrument level.

The Group’s business model for managing financial assets refers to how it manages its financial
assets in order to generate cash flows. The business model determines whether cash flows will result
from collecting contractual cash flows, selling the financial assets, or both.
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Subsequent Measurement. For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified in
four categories:

*  Financial assets at amortized cost (debt instruments)

*  Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income with recycling of cumulative
gains and losses (debt instruments)

*=  Financial assets designated at fair value through other comprehensive income with no recycling
of cumulative gains and losses upon derecognition (equity insiruments)

* Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial Assets at Amortized Cost (Debt Instruments). The Group measures financial assets at
amortized cost if both of the foliowing conditions are met:

® the financial asset is held within a business model with the abjective to hold financial assets in
order to collect contractual cash flows; and

* the coniractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are
solely payments of principal and intcrest on the principal amount outstanding.

Financial assets at amortized cost are subsequently measured using the EIR method and are sutbject to
impairment. Gains and losses are recognized in the consolidated statements of income when the asset
1s derecognized, modified or impaired.

The Group’s financial assets at amortized cost includes “Cash and cash cquivalents™, “Receivables”™,
and “Due from related parties” accounts in the consolidated statements of financial position (see
Notes 6, 8, and 17),

Financial Assets at FVOCI With Recvcling of Cumulative Gains and Losses (Debt Instruments). The
Group measures debt instruments at FVOCI if both of the following conditions are met:

® The financial asset is held within a business model with the objective of both holding to collect
contractual cash flows and selling, and

*  The contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are
solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstandin 2.

For debt instruments at FVOCI, interest income, foreign exchange revaluation and impairment fosses
or reversals are recognized in the consolidated statements of comprehensive income and computed in
the same manner as for the financial assets measured at amortized cost. The remaining fair value
changes are recognized in OCl is recycled to the consolidaled statements of income.

The Group has debt instruments at FVOCI amounting to £235.9 million and 2260.9 million as of
December 31, 2019 and 2018, respectively (see Note 10),

Financial Assets Designated at FVOCI With No Recycling of Cumulative Gains and Losses Upon
Derecognition (Equity Instruments). Upon initial recognition, the Group can elect to classify
irrevocably its equity investments as equity instruments designated at FVOCI when they meet the
definition of equity under PAS 32, Financial Instruments: Presentation, and are not held for trading.
The classification is determined on an instrument-by-instrument basis.

Gains and losses on these financial assets are never recycled to profit or loss. Dividends are
recognized as other income in the consolidated statements of income when the right of payment has
been established, except when the Group benefits from such proceeds as a recovery of part of the cost
of financial asset, in which case, such gains are recorded in the consolidated statements of
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comprehensive income. Equity instruments designated at fair value through OCI are not subject to
impairment.

The Group elected to classify irrevocably its quoted equity securities under this category amounting
to #58.1 million and #132.6 million as of December 31, 2019 and 2018, respectively (see Note 10),

Financial Assets af FVIPL. Financial assets at FVTPL include financial assets held for trading,
financial assets designated upon initial recognition at FVTPL, or financial assets mandatorily required
to be measured at fair value. Financial assets are classified as heid for trading uniess they are
designated as effective hedging instruments. Financial assets with cash flow that are not solely
payments of principal and interest are classified and measured at FVTPL, irrespective of the business
model. Notwithstanding the criteria for debt instruments to be classified at amortized cost or at
FVOC], as described above, debt instruments may be designated at FVTPL on initial recognition if
doing so eliminated, or significantly reduces, an acconnding mismatch.

Financial assets at FVTPL are carried in the consolidated statements of financial position at fair
value, and revaluation gains and losses are recognized in consolidated statements of income.

The Group has financial assets at FVTPL amounting to 2248.6 million and £204.7 million as of
December 31, 2019 and 2018, respectively (see Note 7).

Impairment of Financial Assets. The Group recognizes an allowance for expected credif losses
(ECLs) for all debt instruments not held at fair value through profit or loss. ECLs are based on the
difference between the contractual cash flows due in accordance with the contract and alf the cash
flows that the Group expects 1o receive, discounted at an approximation of the original EIR.

The ECL calculation using general approach is composed of three major components - probability of
defauit (PD), loss given default (LGD), and exposure at default (EAD). The {2-month ECL is
computed for Stage 1 accounts, while the lifetime ECL is calculated for Stage 2 and Stage 3 accounts.
The ECL calculation using simpified approach is computed for Stage 2 and 3 accounts, using
lifetime ECL. Accounts with objective evidence of impairment are classified under Stage 3 and shail
follow the Group’s impairment methodology.

For credit exposures for which there has not been a significant increase in credit risk since initial
recognition, ECLs are provided for credit losses that result from default events that are possible
within the next 12 months (a 12-month ECL). For those credit exposures for which there hias been a
significant jncrease in credit risk since initial recognition, a loss allowance is required for credit fosses
expected over the remaining life of the exposure, irrespective of the timing of the default (a lifetime
ECL).

A loss allowance at an amount equal to at feast 12-month expected credit losses will be recognized
throughout the life of financia} assets, thereby reducing the systematic overstatement of interest
revenue. A loss allowance at an amount equal to lifetime expected credit losses will be recognized
when credit risk has significantly increased since initial recognition, resulting in the timely
recognition of expected credit losses.

The Group considers a financial asset in default when contractual payments are 90 days past duc
and/or it meets certain qualitative criteria. In certain cases, the Grou p may also consider a financial
asset to be in default when internal or extemal information indicates that the Group is untikely to
receive the outstanding contractual amounts in fufl before taking into account any credit
enhancements held by the Company.
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Financial Liabilities. Initial Recognition and Measurement. Financial liabilities are classified, at
initial recognition, as financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss, loans and borrowings,
payables, or as derivatives designated as hedging instruments in an effective hedge, as appropriate.

All financial liabilities are recognized initially at fair value and, in the case of loans and borrowings
and payabies, net of directly attributable transaction costs,

The Group’s financial liabilities include “Accounts payable and accrued expenses”, “Dividends
payable” and other obligations that meet the above definition (other than liabilities covered by other
accounting standards) (see Note 13).

Subsequent Measurement. After initiaf recognition, the Group's financial liabilities are subsegquently
measured at amortized cost using the EIR method.

Derecognition of Financial Instruments

Financial Assets

A fimancial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a group of similar
financial assets) is primarily derecognized (i.e., removed from the Group’s statement of financial
position) when:

= the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired; or

* the Group has transferred its rights to rcceive cash flows from the asset or has assumed an
obligation to pay the received cash flows in full without materiai defay 1o a third party under a
‘pass-through’ arrangement; and cither (a) the Group has transferred substantially all the risks and
rewards of the asset, or (b) the Group has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the
risks and rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of the asset,

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an asset or has entered into a
pass-throngh arrangenent, it evaluates if, and to what extent, it has retained the risks and rewards of
ownership. When it has neither transferred nor retained substantially all of the risks and rewards of
the asset, nor transferred control of the asset, the Group continues to recognize the transferred asset to
the extent of its continuing involvement. In that case, the Group also reco gnizes an associated
liability, The transferred asset and the associated liability are measured on a basis that reflects the
rights and obligations that the Group has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the fortn of a guarantee over the transferred asset is measured at
the lower of the original carrying amount of the asset and the maxinum amount of consideration that
the Group could be required to repay.

Financial Liabilities

A financial Jiability is derecognized when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled
or expires. When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on
substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially meodified, such an
exchange or modification is treated as the derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of
a new liability. The difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognized in the consolidated
statements of income.

Offsetting of Financial Instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilitics are offset and the net amount reported in the consolidated
statemments of financial position if there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognized
amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, or to realize the asset and settle the fiabikity
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simultaneously. The Group assesses that it has a currently enforceable ri ght to offset if the right is
not contingent on a future event, and is legally enforceable in the normal course of business, event of
default, and event of insojvency or bankiuptcy of the Group and all of the counter parties.

Value-added Tax (VAT)

Revenues, expenses, and assets are recognized net of the amount of VAT, if applicable. When VAT
from sales of services (output VAT) exceeds VAT passed on from purchases of goods or services
(input VAT), the excess is recognized as payable in the consolidated statements of financial position.
When VAT passed on from purchases of goods or services (input VAT) exceeds VAT from sales of
services (oulput VAT), the excess is recognized as an asset in the consolidated statements of financial
position to the extent of the recoverable amount.

Investments in Associates

An associaie is an entity over which the Group has significant influence. Significant influence is the
power to participate in the financial and operating policy decisions of the investee, but is not control
or joint control over those policies. The Group’s investment in associates are accounted for under the
equity method.

Under the equity method, the investments in associates are initially recognized at cost, and the
cartying amount is increased or decreased to recognize the Grou p’s share of the profit or {oss of the
associates after the date of acquisition. The Group’s share of the associates’ profit or loss is
recognized in the consolidated stalements of income. Distributions received from associates reduce
the carrying amount of the investment.

Any change in OCI of those investees is presented as part of the consolidated statements of
comprehensive income. In addition, when there has been a change recognized directly in the equity
of the associate, the Group recognizes its share of any changes, when applicable, in equity.
Unrealized gains and osses resulting from transactions between the Grou p and the associates are
eliminated to the extent of the interest in the associate. If the Group’s shares of losses of an associate
equals or exceeds its interest in the associate, the Group discontinues recognizing its share of further
losses.

The carrying amount of the investment is adjusted 1o recognize changes in the Group’s share of net
assets of the associates since the acquisition date. Goodwill refating to the associates is included in
the cairying amount of the investment and is not tested for impairment individualty.

The financial statements of the associates are prepared for the same reporting period as the Group.
When necessary, adjustments are made to bring the accounting policies in line with those of the
Group,

After application of the equity method, the Group determines whether it is necessary o recognize an
impairment loss on its investments in its associates. At each reporting date, the Group determines
whether there is objective evidence that the investments in associates are impaired. If there is such
evidence, the Group calculates the amount of impairment as the difference between the recoverable
amount of the associate and its carrying value, and then recognize the loss in the consolidated
statements of income,

Upon loss of significant influence over the associate, the Group measures and recognizes any retained
investment at its fair value. Any difference between the carrying amount of the associate upon loss of
significant influence or joint control and the fair vaiue of the retained investment and proceeds from
disposal is recognized in the consolidated statements of income.
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The Group has equity interest in the following associates as of December 31, 2019 and 2018:

Country of Percentage of

Incorporation Ownership

Pointwest Technologies Corporation (PTC) Philippines 30%

Business Process Qutsourcing, International (BPO) Philippines 35%
Magetlan Utilities Devetopment Corporation

(MUDC) Philippines 43%

Investment Properties

Investment properties, comprising a parcel of land and condominium units, are held either to earn
rental income or for capital appreciation or both. Investment property periaining to land is measured
at cost, including transaction costs less any accumulated impairment in value.

Investment property pertaining to condominium units is carried at cost less any accumulated
depreciation and any impairment in value. Depreciation is computed using straight-line method over
the estimated useful life of 25 years.

Investment properties are derecognized either when they have been disposed of or when they are
permanently withdrawn from use and no future economie benefit is expected from its disposal. The
difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset is recognized in the
consoiidated statements of income in the period of derecognition,

Transfers are made 1o (or from) investment properties only when there is a chan ge in use. Fora
transfer from investment property to owner-occupied property, the deemed cost for subsequent
accounting is the fair value at the date of change in use. If owner-occupied property becomes an
investment properly, the Group accounts for such property in accordance with the policy stated under
property and equipment up to the date of change in use.

Property and Equipment

Property and equipment is stated at cost, net of accumulated depreciation and accunmulated
impairment losses, if any. Such cost includes the cost of replacing part of the property and
equipment, including cost of major inspection, when that cost is incurred and if the recognition
criteria are met. All other repair and maintenance costs are recognized in the consolidated statements
of income as incurred.

Depreciation 1s computed on a straight-line basis over the estitnated useful lives of the property and
equipment as {ollows:

Category Number of Years
Condominium 25
Condominium iniprovements i0
Transportation equipment 10
Office furniture, fixtures and equipment 5

An item of property and equipment is derecognized upon disposal or when no future economic
benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of the asset
(calculated as difference between the net disposal proceeds and camying amount of the asset} is
included in the statements of consolidated income when the asset is derecognized.

The residual value and useful lives of property and equipment are reviewed periodically and adjusted
prospectively, if appropriate.
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Fully depreciated assets are retained in the accounts unti] these are no longer in use. When assets are
retired or otherwise disposed of, both the cost and related accumulated depreciation and any
allowance for impairment losses are removed from the accounts and any resulting gain or loss is
credited or charged to current operations, An item of property and equipment is derecognized upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal, Any gain or loss
arising on derecognition of the asset (calcufated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds
and the carrying amount of the asset) is included in the consolidated statements of income in the year
the asset is derecognized.

Impairment of Nonfinancial Assets

The Group assesses, at each reporting date, whether there is an indication that an asset maybe
impaired. If any indication exists, the Group estimates the asset’s recoverable amount. An asset’s
recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s cash-generating unit’s (CGU) fair value Iess costs of
disposal and jts value in use. The recoverable amount is determined for an individual asset, unless
the asset does not generate cash inflows that are largely independent of those from other assets or
groups of assets. When the carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its recoverable amount, the
assel is considered impaired and is written down to its recoverable amount.

In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a
pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks
specific to the asset. In determining fair value less costs of disposal, recent market fransactions are
taken into account. 1f no such transactions can be identified, an appropriate valuation model is used.
These calculations are corroborated by valuation multiples, quoted share prices for publicly traded
companies or other available fair value indicators.

Impairment losses are recognized in consolidated statements of income in expense categories
consistent with the function of the impaired asset,

An assessment is made at cach reporting date to determine whether there is an indication that
previously recognized impairment losses no longer exist or have decreased. 1f such indication exists,
the Group estimates the asset’s or CGU’s recoverable amount. A previously recognized impairment
loss is reversed only if there has been a change in the assumptions used to determine the asset’s
recoverable amount since the last impairment foss was recognized. The reversal is Himited so that the
carrying amount of the asset does not exceed its recoverable amount, nor exceed the carrying amount
that would have been determined, net of depreciation, had no impairment loss been reco gnized Tor the
asset in prior years. Such reversal is recognized in consolidated statements of income.

Capital Stock and Additional Paid-in Capital
The Group has issued capital stock that is classified as equity. Incremental costs directly attributable
to the issue of new capital stock are shown in equity as a deduction, net of tax, from the proceeds.

Amount of contribution in excess of par value is accounted for as an additional paid-in capital.
Additional paid-in capital also arises from additional capital contribution from the sharcholders.

Treasury Shares
Own equity instruments that are reacquired (treasury shares) are recognized at cost and deducted from

equity. No gain or loss is recognized in profit or loss on the purchase, sale, issue or cancellation of
the Group’s own equity instruments. Any difference between the carrying amount and the
consideration, if reissued, is recognized in share premium.
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Retained Bamings

The amount included in retained earnings includes income attributabie to the Group’s stockholders
and reduced by dividends. Dividends are recognized as a liability and deducted from equity when
they are approved by the BOD. Dividends for the year that are approved afier the reporting date are
dealt with as an event after the reporting date. Retained earnings may also include effect of changes
in accounting policy as inay be required by the relevant transitional provisions.

Revenue Recognition
Revenue comprises the fair value of the consideration received or receivable for the sale of services in
the ordinary course of the Gyoup’s activities. Revenue is shown net of value-added tax and discounts.

Revenue from conlracts with customers is recognized when contro} of the goods or services are
transferred to the eustomer at an amount that reflects the consideration to which the Group expeets to
be entitled in exchange for those goods or services. The Group determines, at contract inception,
whether it will transfer control of a promised good or service over time. If the Group does not satisfy
a performance obligation over time, the performance obligation is satisfied at a point in time when
control of the asset is transferred to the customer, generally on delivery of the goods or services.

Prior 10 2018, the Group recognizes revenue when the amount of revenue can be reliably measured, it
is possible that future economic benefits will flow into the entity. The amount of revenue is not
considered to be reliably measured unti ali contingencies refating to the sale have been resolved. The
Group bases jts estimates on historical results, taking into consideration the type of customer, the type
of transaction and the specifics of each arrangement.

Revenue Outside the Scope of PFRS 15
The specific recognition criteria described below must be met before revenue is recognized.

Interest Income

For all financial instruments measured at amortized cost and interest-bearing financial assets, interest
income is recorded using the EIR method. EIR is the rate that exactly discounts the estimated future
cash payments or receipts over the expected life of the financial instrument or shogter period, where
appropriate, to the net carrying amount of the financial asset or liability. Interest income is
recognized in the consolidated statements of income.

Dividend Income
Revenue is recognized when the Group’s right to receive payment is established, which is generajly
when the investee’s BOD approves the dividend.

Rent Income
Rent income arising {from operating lease on investment properties is accounted for on a straight-line
basis over the noncancelable lease term and is included in revenue in the consolidated statements of

income.

Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating and arranging an operating lease are added to the carrying
amount of the leased asset and recognized over the lease term on a straight-line basis. Contingent
rents are recognized as revenue in the period in which they are earned.

Expenses
Expenses are decreases in economic benefits during the accounting period in the form of outflows or

decrease of assets or incurrence of liabilities that result in decreases in equity, other than those
relating to distributions to equity participants. Expenses are generally recognized when goods are
received by and services are rendered to the Group or when the expenses arise.
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Retirement Benefits
The cost of praviding benefits under the defined bencfit plan is determined using the projected unit
credit method,

Remeasurements comprising of actuarial gains and losses, return on plan assets and any change in the
cffect of asset ceiling (excluding amounts net interest on the net defined benefit liability), are
recognized immediately in the consolidated statements of comprehensive income in the period in
which they ocour. Remeasurements are not reclassified to the consolidated statements of income in
subsequent periods.

Past service costs are recognized in the consolidated statemenis of income on the carlier of®

¢ The date of the plan amendment or curtailment, and
e The date that the Group recognizes related restructuring costs

Net interest is calculated by applying the discount rate to the net defined benefit liability or asset.
The Group recognizes the following changes in the net defined benefit obligation under “Retirement
benefits” in consolidated statements of income:

»  Service costs comprising current service costs, past service costs, gains and losses on curailments
and non-routine settlements
e Net interest expense or income

Leases effective January 1, 2019

The Group assesses at contract inception whether a conlract is, or contains, a lease. That is, if the
contract conveys the right to contro} the use of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for
cansideration.

Leases prior to Jannary 1, 2019

The determination of whether an arrangement is, or contains, a lease is based on the substance of the
arrangement at inception date whether the fulfiliment of the arrangement is dependent on the use of a
specific asset or assets or the arrangement eonveys a right to use the asset. A reassessment is made
after inception of the lease only if one of the following applies:

(a) There is a change in coniractual terms, other than a renewal or extension of the arrangement;

(b} A renewal option is exercised or extension granted, unless the terin of the renewal or extension
was initially included in the lease term;

{¢) There is a change in the determination of whether fulfiflment is dependent on a specified asset; or
{d) There is substantial change to the asset.

Where a reassessinent is made, lease accounting shall commence or cease froin the date when the
change in circumstances gave rise to the reassessment for scenarios (a), (c), or (d) and at the date of
renewal or extenston period for scenatio (b).

Foreign Currency Transactions

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Philippine pese, which is the Group’s
functional currency. Transactions in foreign currencies are initially recorded at their respective
functional currency spot rates at the date the transaction first qualifies for recognition. Monetary
assets and lLabilities denominated in foreign currencies are {ranslated using the functional currency
spot rates of exchange at the reporting date. Differences arising from settlement or transiation of
monetary items are recognized in profit or loss. Nommonetary items that are measured in terms of
historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates as at the dates of the initial
transactions. Nonmonetary items measured at fair value in a foreign currency are translated using the
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exchange rates at the dates when the fair values are determined. The gain or loss arising on
translation of nonmonetary items measured at fair values is treated in line with the recognition of gain
or loss on the change in fair value of the item (i.¢., translation differences on items whose fair value
gain or loss is recognized in the consolidated statements of comprehensive income or the consolidated
statements of income are also recognized in the consolidated statements of comprehensive inconc or
consolidatcd statements of income, respectively).

Income Taxes

Current Income Tax

Current income tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount cxpected to be recovered from ar
paid to the taxation authorities. The income tax rates and income tax laws used to compute the
amount are those that are enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date.

Current income tax relating to items recognized directly in equity is recognized in equity and not in
the consolidated statements of income.

Deferred Income Tax

Deferred income tax is provided using the balance sheet liability method on temporary differences
between the incomne tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial
reporting purposes at reporting date.

Deferred income tax liabilities are recognized for all 1axable temporary differences, except:

e  where the deferred income tax liability arises from the initial recognition of goodwilt or of an
asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business combination and, at the time of the
transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

* inrespect of taxable temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries, associates
and interests in joint ventures, where the timing of the reversal of the temporary differences can
be controlled and it is probable that the temporary differences will not reverse in the forcseeable
future,

Deferred income tax assets are recognized for all deductible temporary differences, the carry forward
of unused tax credits in the form of minimum corporate income tax (MCIT) and unused tax losses in

the form of net operating loss carryover (NOLCO). Deferred income tax assets are recognized to the
extent that it is probable that taxable income will be available against which the deductible temporary
differences of MCIT and NOLCO can be utilized, except:

* where the deferred income tax asset relating 1o the deductible temporary difference arises from
the initial recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business combination
and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor taxabie profit or loss;
and

* inrespect of deductible temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries,
associates and interests in joint ventures, deferred incoine tax assets are recognized only to the
extent that it is probable that the temporary differences will reverse in the foreseeable future and
taxable income wiil be available against which the temporary differences can be utilized.

The carrying amount of deferred income lax assets is reviewed at each reportin g date and reduced to
the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable income will be available 1o allow all or
part of the deferred income tax assct to be utilized. Unrecognized deferred income tax assets are
reassessed at each reporting date and are recognized to the extent that it has become probable that
future taxable income will allow the deferred income tax asset to be yecovered.

IERREN A



=22 .

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are measured at the income tax rates that are expected o
apply to the year when the asset is realized or the liability is settled, based on income fax rates and
income tax laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date,

Deferred income tax relating to items recognized outside profit or loss is recognized outside of profit
or loss. Deferred income tax items are recognized in correlation to the undertying transaction either
in OCI or directly in equity.

Deferred income tax assets and deferred income tax liabilities are offset if a legally enforceable right
exists to set off current income tax against current income tax liabilities and the deferred income taxes
relate to 1he same taxable entity and same taxation authority.

Tax benefits acquired as part of a business combination, but not satisfying the criteria for separate
recognition at that date, are recognized subseguently if new information about facts and
circumstances change. The adjustments is either treated as a reduction in goodwill (as long as it does
not exceed goodwill) if'it was incurred during the measurement period or recognized in the
consolidated statements of income,

Provisions

Provisions are recognized when the Group has a present obligation (fegal or constructive) as a result
of"a past event, it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be
required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.
Where the Group expects some or all of a provision to be reimbursed, for example, under an
msurance contract, the reimbursement is recognized as a separate asset, but only when the
reimbursement is virtually certain. The expense relating to a provision is presented in the
consolidated statements of income, net of any reimbursement,

If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted using a current
pre-tax rate that reflects, where appropriate, the risks specific to the liability. When discounting is
used, the inerease in the provision due to the passage of time is recognized as interest expense.

Contingeneies

Contingent assets and liabilities are not recognized in the consolidated financial statements.
Contingent assets are disclosed in the notes to the consolidated financial statements when an inflow
of economic benefits is probable and recognized in the econsolidated statements of financial position
and the related income in the consolidated statements of income when an inflow of economic benefits
is virtually certain. On the other hand, contingent liabilities are disclosed in the notes to the
consolidated financial statements unless the possibility of an outflow of resources embodying
economic benefits is remote.

Famings Per Share (EPS)

Basic eamings per share amounts are calculated by dividing net income for the year attributable to
equity holders of the parent by the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding during
the vear.

Diluted eamings per share amounts are calculated by dividing the net income for the year attributable
to equity holders of the parent by the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding during
the year plus the weighted average number of ordinary shares that would be issued on the conversion
of all the dilutive potential ordinary shares into ordinary shares.

As of December 31, 2019, 2018 and 2017, the Group does not have any dilutive potential commeon
shares. Hence, diluted EPS is the same as basic EPS.

LB



-23 .

Segment Reporting

Yor purposes of Management reporting, the Group’s operating businesses arc organized and managed
separately on a per Company basis, with each company representing a strategic business segment.
The Group's identificd operating segments are consistent with the segments reported to the BOD
which is the Group’s Chief Operating Decision Maker (CODM). Information on the operating
segment is presented in Note 19,

LEvents After the Reporting Period

Events after the repotting period that provide additional information about the Group’s financial
position at the reporting date (adjusting events) are reflected in the consolidated financial statements.
Events after the reporting period that are not adjusting events are disclosed in the notes to
consolidated financial statements when natetial,

Significant Accounting Judgments, Estimates and Assumptions

The consolidated financial statements prepared in accordance with PFRSs require mana gement to
make judginents, estimates and assumptions that affect amounts reported in the financial statements
and related notes. The judgments, estimates and assumptions used in the financial statements are
based upon management’s evaluation of relevant facts and circumstances as of the date of the
consolidated financial statements. Actual results could differ from such estimates.

Judgments, estimatcs and assumptions are continually evaluated and are based on historical
experiences and other factors, including expectations of future events that are believed to be
reasonable under the circumstanees, The following items are those rnatters which the Group assess {0
have significant risks arising from estimation uncertainties;

Judgments

Determination of Significant Influence over an Investee Company

The Group considers its investments in PTC, BPO and MUDC as investments in associates. The
Group concluded that it has more than 20% ownership interest and has significant influence over the
operating and financial policies of its investments in associates due to the following;

¢ representation on the BOD,

¢ participation in policy-making processes, including participation in decisions about dividends and
other distributions; and

¢ material transactions between the investor and investee

Determining Noncontrolling Interest (NCI) that is Material to the Group

The Group assesses whether an NC1 is material by considering factors such as the carrying amount of
the NCI relative to the net equity of the Group, the profit or loss or OCI of the subsidiary attributable
to the NCI, the assets and liabilities of the related subsidiary, or the amount of dividends paid by the
subsidiary to the NCI, and the proportion that these amounts bear to the Group’s financial position or
results of operations. The Group also considers the nature of the activities of the su bsidiary and its
relative importance or risk compared to other operations of the Group. Based on management’s
assessment, it has determined that the NCI in MCHC is not material to the Group.

Classification of Financial Instruments

The Group exercises judgments in classifying a financial instrument, or its component parts, upon
initial recognition either as a financial asset, a financial liability or an equity instrument in accordance
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with the substance of the contractual arrangement and the definitions of a financial asset, a financial
liability or an equity instrument. The substance of a financial instrument, rather than its legal form,
governs its classification in the consolidated statements of financial position.

In addition, the Group classifies financial assets by evaluating, among others, whether the asset is
quoted or not in an active market. Included in the evaluation on whethet a financial asset is guoted in
an active market is the determination on whether market transactions take place with sufficient
frequency and volume,

Contractual Cash Flows Assessment
Beginning January 1, 2018, for each financial asset, the Group assesses the contractual terms fo
identify whether the instrument is consistent with the concept of SPPL

‘Principal’ for the purpose of this test is defined as the fair value of the financial asset at initial
recognition and may change over the fife of the {inancial asset (for example, if thete are repayments
of principal or amortization of the premium/discount).

The most significant elements of interest within a lending arrangement are typically the consideration
for the time value of money and credit risk. To make the SPPI assessment, the Group applies
judgment and considers relevant factors such as the currency in which the financial asset is
denominated, and the period for which the interest rate is set,

In contrast, contractual terms that introduce a more than de minimis exposure to risks or volatility in
the contractual cash flows that are unrelated to a basic lending arrangement do not give rise to
contractual cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the amount outstanding,
In such cases, the financial asset is required to be measured at FVTPL.,

Lvaluation of Business Model in Managing Financial Instruments

Beginning January 1, 2018, the Group determines its business modct at the level that best reflccts
how it manages groups of finaneia} assets to achieve its business objective. The Group’s business
model is not assessed on an instrument-by-instrument basis, but at a higher level of aggregated
portfolios and is based on obsexvable factors such as:

* How the performance of the business inodel and the financial assets held within that business
mode] are evaluated and reported to the entity's key management personnel;

* The risks that affect the performance of the business model {(and the financial assets held within
that business model} and, in particular, the way those risks are managed; and

* The expected frequency, value and timing of sales are also important aspects of the Group’s
asscssment,

The business model assessment is based on reasonably expected scenarios without taking ‘worst case’
or ‘stress case’ scenarios into account. I cash flows afler initial recognition are realized in a way that
is different from the Group’s original expectations, the Group does not change the classification of
the remaining financial assets held in that business model, but incorporates such information when
assessing newly originated or newly purchased financial assets going forward,

Estimates and Assumptions

Determination of Fair Values of Financial Instruments

The Group carries and discloses certain financial assets and liabilities at fair value, which requires
extensive use of accounting estimates and judgments. While significant components of fair value
measurement were determined using verifiable objective evidence (i.e., quoted prices, interest rates
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and foreign exchange rates), the amount of changes in fair value would differ if the Group utilized a
different valuation methodology.

Where the fair value of certain financial assets and financial fiabilitics recorded in the consolidated
statements of financia) position cannot be derived from active markets, they are determined using
internal valuation techniques using generally accepted martket valuation models. The inputs to these
models are taken from observable markets where possible, but where this is not feasible, estimates are
used in establishing fair values. The judgments include of liquidity and model inputs such as liquidity
risk, credit risk and considerations volatility. Changes in assumptions about these factors could affect
the yeported fair value of financial instruments.

The fair values of the Group’s financial instruments are disclosed in Note 22 to the consolidated
financial statements,

Estimating Provision for Expected Credit Losses (Effective Starting January 1, 2018)

The Group uses the general approach to caleulate expected credit losses for receivables and amounts
due from related parties. The Group tracks changes in credit risk and recognizes a loss aflowance
based on either a 12~-month or lifetime ECL at each reporting date. The information about the
Group’s expected credit Josses is disclosed in Note 21.

In 2019 and 2018, the Group did not recognize additional provision for expected credit losses on its
receivables and due from related parties.

As of December 31, 2019, the aggregate allowance for expected credit losses on receivables and due
from related parties amounted to #188.6 million. The receivables and due from related parties, net of
allowance for expected credit losses, amounted to £23.3 million and B23.5 million as of December
31, 2019, and 2018, respectively (see Notes 8 and 17).

Estimating Impairment of Equity Securities Classified as AFS Financial Assets (Effective Until
December 31, 2017)

The Group treats quoted equity securities classified as AFS financial assets as impaired when there

has been a significant or prolonged decline in the fair value below its cost or where other objective

cvidence of impairment exists. The determination of what is ‘significant’ or ‘prolonged’ requires

Jjudgment,

The Group generally considers a decline in fair value of greater than 20% as significant and a decline
in fair value for a period of more than six months as prolonged. In addition, the Group evaluates
other factors, including normal volatility in share price for quoted equities and the future cash flows
and the discount factors for unquoted equities.

For unquoted shares, the Group estimates the expected future cash flows from the investment and
calculates the amount of impairment as the difference between the present value of expected future
cash flows from the investment and its acquisition cost and recognizes the amount in the consolidated
statements of comprehensive income.

No impairment on unquoted equity securities classified as AFS financial assets was recognized in
2017,
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LEstimating Impairment of Debt Securities Classified as Financial Assets at FVOCI (Effective Starting
January I, 2018)

The Group assesses the counterparty’s ability to comply with the contractual obligations to pay out

principal and interest. Further, the Group assesses whether the credit risk on that {inancial

instruments has increased significantly since initiat recognition.

For debt instruments at FVOC], the Group applies the low credit risk simplification. At every
reporting date, the Group evaluates whether the debt instrument is considered 1o have low credit risk
using all reasonable and supportable information that is available without undue cost or effort. In
making that evaluation, the Group reassesses the internal credit rating of the debt instrument.

The Group’s debt instrument in FVOC] comprise solely of top investment grade bonds that are
graded by top credit yating agencies and, therefore, are considered to be low credit risk investments.
It is the Group’s policy to measure ECLs on such instruments on a [ 2-month basis. However, when
there has been a significant increase in credit risk since origination, the allowance wili be based on
the lifetime ECL. The Group uses the ratings from the top credit rating agencies both to determine
whether the debt instrument has significantly increased in credit risk and to estimate ECLs.

The Group recognized impairment loss for debt securities classified as financial assets at FVOCI as at
December 31, 2019 and 2018 amounting to £0.7 million and R0.8 million, respectively (see Note 10),
The carrying value of debt securities classified as financial assets at FVOCI as of December 31, 2019
and 2018 amounted to $235.9 million and £260.9 million, respectively.

Estimating Impairment of Investment in Associates

The Group performs an impairment review on ifs investments in associates whenever an impairment
indicator exists. This requires an estimation of the value in use of the investments. Estimating the
value in use requires the Group to make an estimate of the expected future cash flows of the
investments and to make use of a suitable discount rate to calculate the present value of those future
cash flows.

The carrying amount of investment in shares of stock amounted to £277.6 million and £283.5 million
as of December 31, 2019 and 2018, respectively. Allowance for imnpairment losses on the Group’s
investments in associates amounted to £94.8 million as of December 31, 2019 and 2018 (see Note 9%

Estimating Impaivment of Nonfinancial Assets

The Group determines whether prepayments and other current assets, investments in associates,
property and equipment, investment properties, and other noncurrent assets are impaired whenever
events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of the assets may not be
recoverable.

The factors that the Group considers important which could trigger an impairment review include the
following:

* Significant underperformance relative to expected historical or projected future operating results;

» Significant changes in the manner of use of the acquired assets or the strategy for overall
business; and

» Significant negative industry or economic trends.

An impairment loss is recognized whenever the cartying amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable

amount. The estimated recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value Iess costs to sell and
value in use. The fair value less costs to sell is the amount obtainable from the sale of an asset in an
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arm’s tength transaction less the costs of disposal while value in use is the present value of estimated
future cash flows expected to arise from the continuing use of an asset and from its disposal at the end
of its useful life. Recoverable amounts are estimated for individual assets or, if it is not possible, for
the cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs.

The Group has not identified any eveats or changes in circumstances that would indicate an
impairment of its nonfinancial assets as of December 31, 2019 and 2018 as follows:

2019 2018
Prepayments and other current assets $£33,303,802 233,652,221
Property and equipment (see Note [1) 7,283,121 8,927,081
Investment properties (see Note 12) 391,291,609 399,897,554
Other noncurrent assets 29,136,257 743,580

P461,014,789 £443,220,436

Estimating Useful Lives of Property and Equipment and Investment Properties

The estimated useful lives used as bases for depreciating the Group’s property and equipment and
investiment properties were determined on the basis of management’s assessment of the period within
which the benefits of these assets are expeeted to be realized taking into account actual historical
information on the use of such assets as well as industry standards and averages applicable to the
Group’s assets.

The net book value of the Group’s property and equipment and investment properties are disclosed in
Notes 11 and |2 to the consolidated {inancial statements.

Estimating Retirement Benefit Obligation

The determination of the obligation and cost of retirement benefits is dependent on the selection of
certain assumptions used by actuary in calculaling such amounts. In accordance with PFRSs, actual
results that differ from the assumptions are accumulated and amortized over future periods and
therefore, generally affect the recognized expense and recorded obligation in such future periods.
While the Group believes that the assumptions are reasonable and appropriate, significant differences
in the actual experience or significant changes in the assumptions may materially affeet the retirement
benefit obligation. The carrying amount of the Group’s retirement benefit obligation as of

December 31, 2019 and 2018 amounted to £18.3 million and £12.9 million, respectively (see Note
i4).

Estimating Realizability of Deferred Income Tax Assets

Deferred income tax asset is recognized for all deductible temporary differences to the extent that it is
probable that sufficient future taxable income will be available in the future against which the
deductible temporary differences can be utilized. Significant management estimate is required to
determine the amount of deferred tax asset that can be recognized, based upon the likely timing and
level of future taxable income together with future tax planning strategies. The Group did not
recognize deferred income tax assets on its deductible temporary differences amounting to

£250.6 mitlion as of December 31, 2019 and 2018, as management believes that sufficient future
taxable income will not be available to aliow all or part of the deferred income 1ax asset to be utilized
(see Note 13),

Estimating Provision for Legal Obligation

The estimate of provision for legal obligation has been developed by management. The management
currently does not believe the provision will have a material adverse effect on its financial position
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and results of operations. It is possible, however, that future results of operations could be materially
affected by changes in the estimates of provisions. In 2011, the Group recognized provision for legal
obligation amounting to 5.0 million for claim arising from lawsuit which is either awailing decision
by the eourts or is subject to settlement obligations (see Note 20). No additional provisions were
made in 2019, 2018 and 2017.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

2019 2018
Cash on hand and with banks B34,519.227 £57,082,264
Shori-tertn placements 547,733,443 514,288,762

£582,252,670 RB571,371,026

Cash with banks earn interest at the respective bank deposit rates. Short-term placements are fixed
rate time deposits denominated in United States (US) dolfar and Philippine peso, made for varying
periods of up to three months or less, depending on the immediate cash requirements of the Group,
and earn interest at the respective bank rates ranging from 1.5% to 6.2% in 2019, 1.0% 10 4.9% in
2018 and 1.0% to 2.5% in 2017.

Interest income eamned from these bank deposits and short-term placements amounted to #18.9
million, £13.6 million and £14.9 million in 2019, 2018 and 2017, respectively.

Financial Assets at FVTPL

Financial assets at FVTPL consist of listed securities which are traded in the PSE, New York Stock
Exchange (NYSE) and Hong Kong Stock Exchange (HKEx). Fair values of listed equity securifies
are based on quoted market prices in the PSE, NYSE and HKEx.

The carrying value of financial assets at FVTPL ineludes cumulative unrealized gain on fair value
changes amounting to #55.1 million and £29.8 million in 2019 and 2018, respectively.

The roliforward of the Gronp’s investments in financial assets at FVTPL is as follows:

2019 2018

Cost:

Balances at beginning of year B174,942,538 B107,599,765

Additions 23,571,711 67,342,773

Disposals {4,943.,497) —~

Balances at end of year 193,570,752 174,942,538
Changes in fair value:

Balances at beginning of year 29,795,774 43,958,734

Fair value gains (losses) 27,685,974 (14,162,960)

Disposals (2,405,672) -~

Balances at end of year 55,076,076 29,795,774

P248,646.828 R204,738,312

Dividend income earned on investments in financial assets at FVTPL arﬁounted to £4.0 million,
£3.0 milkion, and £1.4 million in 2019, 2018 and 2017, respectively, presented as “Dividend income”
in the consolidated statements of income.
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The Group recognized gain on disposal of financial asset at FVTPL amounting to £3.4 thousand, nil
and P1.3 million in 2019, 2018 and 2017, respectively.

8. Receivables

2019 2018

Third parties:
Accrued interest 26,193,246 B7.447.413
Rent receivables 595,352 618,895

Others 79,340 177,441

Balances at end of year 6,867,938 8,243,749
Less allowance for expected credit losses 961,368 961,368
P5,906,570 B7.282,381

Accrued interest from third parties pertain to interests earned on investiments in short-term
placements, short-term investrments and debt securities classified as financial assets at FVOCI that are
expected to be collected within one year.

9. Investments in Associafes

2019 2018
P193,760,135 £193,760,135

Acquisition cost

Accumulated share in net eamings, other
comprehensive income and cumnulative
translation adjustment of associates:

As at beginning of year 184,533,306 221,283,475
Share in net income (losses) of associates 5,344,072 (13,972,203)
Dividends declared by associates (29,712,600) (44,746,750}
Share in other comprehensive income

of associates 26,238,374 8,210,944
Cumulative transtation adjustment {7,733,503) 13,757,840

As at end of year 178,669,649 184,533,306
372,429,784 378,293,441

Less allowance for impairment losses 94,830,129 04,830,129
P277,599,655 282,463,312
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The Group has equity inferest in the following associates as of December 31:

Carrying Amouni of

Country of  Percentage of Investments

Incorporation Ownership 2019 2018
MUDC Philippines 43% £94,830,129  £94,830,129

Less allowance

for impairment
losses (94,830,129  (94,830,129)
PTC Philippines 30% 207,396,659 221,837,783
BPO Philippines 35% 70,202,966 61,625,529
#277,599,625 P$2§31,463,312

PTC

PTC is a global service company outsourcing information technology services from the Philippines.
Among others, it offers software servicing, maintenance, festing and development to various clients,

mostly in the US.

Dividends

On Aprit 12, 2019, PTC declared cash dividends amounting to $1.0 million or $0.00073 per share of
the outstanding stocks as of record date January 31, 2019. Dividends were paid on June 30, 2019

(see Note 17).

On February 13, 2018, PTC declared cash dividends amounting to $2.1 million or $0.0015 per share
of the outstanding stocks as of record date January 31, 2018. Dividends were paid on June 30, 2018

(see Note 17),

On February 14, 2017, PTC declared cash dividends amounting to $2.1 million or $0.0015 per share
of the outstanding stocks as of record date January 31, 2017. Dividends were paid on June 30, 2017

(see Note 17).

The Group’s share in the dividends declared amounted to £15.7 million, 232.5 million, and

P30.8 million in 2019, 2018 and 2017, respectively.

The summarized financial information of PTC is as follows (*000):

2019 2018
Current assets P581,563 B673,160
Noncurrent assets 282,645 191,348
Total assets 864,208 864,508
Current liabilities 122,095 123,261
Noncuirent Habilities 69,541 20,537
Total liabilities 191,636 143,798
Equity 672,572 720,710
Gross revenue 748,470 1,090,760
Operating loss {63,381} (116,279}
Net loss (54,911) (107,522)
Group’s share in net loss (16,473) (32,257
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The difference between the carrying value of the investment in PTC apgainst the share in net assets of
PTC represents goodwill at acquisition date,

BPO

BPO is a provider of accounting and finance related services such as payroll, internal audit, payables
processing and others, It is involved in outsourcing business process services in the Philippines,
servicing many of the multinationa) and large corporations operating in the country.

Dividends

On December 27, 2019, BPO declared cash dividends amounting to £40.0 million or £51 .28 per share
of the outstanding stocks as of record date December 28, 2019. Dividends shall be payable on or
before August 28, 2020 (see Note 17).

On December 18, 2018, BPO declared cash dividends amounting to £35.0 million or 244.87 per share
of the outstanding stocks as of record date December 17, 2018. Dividends were paid on August 31,
2019 (see Note 17),

On December 12, 2017, BPO declared cash dividends amounting to £30.0 million or #107.00 per
share of the outstanding siocks as of record date December 12, 2017. Dividends were paid on June
30, 2018 (see Note 17).

The Group’s share in the dividends declared amounted to 214.0 miilion, 812,25 million and
£10.5 miilion in 2019, 2018 and 2017, respectively.

The summarized financial information of BPO is as follows (*000):

2019 2018
Current assets 177,620 B160,725
Noncurrend assets 99,529 74,420
Total assets 277,149 235,145
Current liabilitics 124,556 105,619
Noncurrent liabilities 11,410 13,295
Total liabilities 135,966 118,914
Equity 141,183 116,231
(ross revenue 205,268 175,548
Operating profit 89,808 69,754
Net income 62,781 52,241
Group’s share in net income 21,973+ 18,284

*Amounts are based on the awdited financial statements of BPO. The share in net income of associate taken 1 for
canyolidation is net of adfustment of the difference in accounting for leases.

The difference between the carrying value of the investment in BPO against the share in net assets of
BPO represents goodwili at acquisition date.

MUDC

The Group has a 43% interest in MUDC, As of December 31, 2019, MUDC has been
non-operational since its incorporation. However, it has obtained the necessary requirements for the
signing of a supply agreement with a public utility firm and a purchase agreement with certain oil
companies. As of December 31, 2019 and 2018, MUDC has project development costs of

P207.1 million. The recoverability of these assets and the uitimate success of MUDC’s future
operations are dependent upon the signing of these agreements. The foregoing conditions indicate the
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existence of a material uncertainty which inay cast significant doubt on MUDC’s ability to continuc
as a going concern and the recoverability of the Group’s significant investment in MUDC.

As of December 31, 2019 and 2018, MUDC has incurred significant losses, which resulied in capital
deficiency amounting to £257.4 and £257.2 million in 2019 and 2018, respectively.

The Group has investment in MUDC amounting to £94.8 million as of December 31, 2019 and 2018
and advances to MUDC amounting to #188.4 million as of December 31, 2019 and 2018 {see Note
17). The Group has assessed that its investment in MUDC amounting to £94.8 million as of
December 31, 2019 and 2018 and its advances to MUDC amounting to £188.4 million as of
December 31, 2019 and 2018 are impaired since management believes that it will no longer recover
from such investment and advances (see Note [7). Management is not required to infuse more capita}
to MUDC and that josses are limited to the invested additional advances as of December 31, 2019 and
2018.

10. Financial Assets at FYOQC]

2019 2018

Quoted:
Debt securities - at fair value, net of aljowance for
impairment loss of 2.1 million in 2019 and

2018 B235,921,149 £2060,853,437

Equity securities 58,075,827 132,605,290

Unquoted equity securities 6,515,877 37,572,877

300,512,853 431,031,604

Less cusrent portion 582,302 6,945,819

£299,930,551 £424 085 785

Movements in financial assets at FVOC] are as follows:

2019 2018

Balance at beginning of year P431,031,004 R522,510,808

Additions 15,506,600 22,141,284

Changes recognized in profit or loss (8,216,708) 1,008,589
Movements in net unrealized valuation loss {43,803.871) (61,004,886)
Disposals (94,004,772) (53,624,191)

Balances at end of year P300,512.853 £431,031,604

Investments in debt securities are denominated in various foreign currencies and are stated at fair
value based on guoted prices. Changes in market values are included in the consolidated statements
of comprehensive income. The debt securities bear fixed interest rates ranging from 4.38% to
13.63%, 2.71% to 10.02%, and 2.71% to 13.63% in 2019, 2018 and 2017, respectively. Maturity
dates of the investments range from 2017 to 2024. Interests on investments are received and settied
semi-annually in its denominated currency.

Investments in equity securities carried at fair value consist of investments in quoted and unquoted
shares of stock which the Group has neither control nor significant influence. The fair market values
of the listed shares are determined by reference to published quotations in an active market as of
December 31, 2019 and 2018. For unlisted shares of stocks that do not have readily available market
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values, the Group uses valuation for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is directly or indirectly observable.

Movements i the net unrealized valuation gains on financial assets at FVOCI are as follows:

2019 2018
Balance at beginning of year £23,979,813 273,239 857
Changes in fair value (34,163,736) (49,972,652)
Expected credit losses 674,413 754,082
Disposals (3,563,773) (41,474)
Balances at end of year (P13,073.284) 823,979,813

Allowance for expected credit [osses on financial assets at FVOCI debt instruments financial assets
amounted to £2.1 million as of December 31, 2019 and 2018.

Net unrealized valuation gains on financial assets at FVOCI attributable to equity holders of the
Parent Company amounted to #18.6 million and £17.4 million as of December 31, 2019 and 201 8,
respectively.

Interest eamed on debt sccurities classified as financial assets at FVOC] amounted to £17.4 million
and £19.5 million in 2019 and 2018, respectively, and interest earned on debt securities classified as
AFS financial assets amounted to £22.5 million in 2017 presented as “Interest income” in the
consolidated statements of income.

Dividend income earned on equity securities classified as financial assets at FVOCI amounied to
P0.9 and 0.7 million in 2019 and 2018, respectively, and dividend income earned on equity
securities classified as AFS financial assets amounted #1.0 miilion in 2017.

The Group disposed certain financial assets at FVOCI and recognized a gain from disposal amounting
to £3.9 million in 2019 and a loss of #1.3 million in 2018. The Group recognized a gain from disposal
ol AFS financial assets amounting to 2.2 million in 2017.

11.

Property and Equipment

Office
Furniture,
Condominiutn Transportation  Fixtares and 2019
Cundominium Improvements Equipment Eguipment Total
Cost:
Balances at beginning of year B20,755,943 B8.764,062 210,263,079 B2,865,479 Bd42.648,563
Additions - - 9,567 9,567
Bajanees at end of vear 20,755,943 8,764,062 10,263,079 2,875,046 42,658,130
Accumulated depreciation:
Balances at beginning of year 15,152,152 8,387,280 7,337,618 2,844,432 33,721,482
Depreciation 830,237 70,547 743,595 2,148 1,653,527
Balances at end of vear 15,982,389 8,457,827 8,081,213 2,853,580 35,375,000
Net book values B4,773,554 E306,235 E2,181,866 B21,466 27,283,121
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Office Furniture,

Condominium  Transportation Fixtures and 2018
Condominiutn  lmprovements Equipment Equipment Total
Cost:
Balances at begioning of year R20,755,943 BG022,991 10,263,079 B2.863,302 P42, 905,315
Additions - 2,177 2,177
Tronsfer 1o investment property
{see Note 12) - (258,929} - {258,929)
Balances at end of year 20,755,941 8,764,062 10,263,079 2,865479 42,648,563
Accumudated depreciation:
Balances at beginning of vear 14,321,915 8,316,732 6,489 859 2,819,601 31,948,197
Depreciation 830,237 70,548 847,759 24,741 1,773,285
Balances at end of year 15,152,152 8,387,280 7,337,618 2,844,432 33,721,482
Net book values P5.603,791 B376,782 22,925 461 221,047 Bg,927,08!
12. Investment Properties
2019
Land Condominium Total
Cost:
Balances at beginning of year B46,319,625 P305,565,125 E441,884,750
Additions - 189,876 189,876
Balances at end of year 46,319,625 395,755,001 442,074,626
Acenmulated depreciation:
Balances at beginning of year - 41,987,196 41,987,196
Depreciation — 8,795,821 8,795,821
Balances at end of year - 50,783,015 50,783,017
Net book valies B46,319,625 B344,971,984 B193,291,609
2018
Land Condominium Total
Cost:
Balances al beginning of year P46,319,625 P215815,620 B262,135,244
Additions - 179,490,576 179,490,576
Transfer from property and equipment (sce
Note 11) - 258929 258,929
Balances at end of year 46,319,625 395,505,123 441,884,750
Accumulated depreciation:
Balances at beginning of year - 33203111 33,203,111
Depreciation 8,784,085 8,784,085
Balances at end of year 41,987,196 41,987,196
Net book valucs B46,319,625 P353,577,929 P39G 897,554

Condominium units include propetties costing #179.5 million which title have been passed on to the
Company but are still not completed as of December 31, 2019.

Condominium units are being leased to third parties and other related parties as office space. The
investment properiies generated rent income amounting to £25.1 million, £23.2 million and

$20.8 million 2019, 2018 and 2017, respectively (see Note 20). Direct operating expenses arising
from investment propexties that generated rent income include depreciation and condominium dues
which amounted to £10.8 million in 2019 and £11.0 million in 2018 and 2017.

Sules Comparison Approach

The Group used the Sales Comparison Approach in determining the fair value of land and certain
residential condominium units. This is a comparative approach to value that considers the sales of
similar or substitute properties and related market data and establishes a value estimate by processes
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involving comparison. The asscssed fair value of the investment properties amounted to

£878.7 million and £785.2 million as of December 31, 2019 and 2018, respectively. The fair values
of the invesiment properties are based on valuations performed by an accredited independent valuer
in 2018 and management appraisal updated using current and year-end values and assumptions, as
available, in 2019. The valuation model in accordance with that recommended by the International
Valuation Standards Committee has been applied.

Sales comparison approach uses data on actual sales and/or listings, offers, and renewal options, and
identifies the similarities and differences in the data, ranks the data according to their relevance,
adjusts the sales prices of the comparable to account for the dissimilarities with the unit being
appraised, and forms a conclusion as to the most reasonable and probable market value of the subject

propetty.

The clements of comparison include location, physical characteristics, available utilities, zoning, and
highest and best use. The most variable elements of comparison are the site’s physical characteristics,
which include its size and shape, frontage, topography and location,

The significant unobservable inputs to valuation of investment properties ranges from £282,000 -
792,000 per square meter in 2019 and 2018.

For land and certain residential condominium units, significant increases (decreases) in price per
square metey would result in a significantly higher (lower) fair value of the properties.

Income Approach

‘The Group used the Income Approach in determining the fair value of condominiwm units for lease.
The Income Approach is based on the premise that the value of a property is dircetly related to the
income it generates. Capitalization rate used in the income approach valuation is 6%. The assessed
fair value of the investment properties amounted to £437.9 million and £442.9 million as of
December 31, 2019 and 2018, respectively.

For condominium units for lease, significant increases (decreases) in the income generated from the
properties would result in a significantly higher (fower) fair value of the properties.

These investment properties are categorized as Level 3 in the fair value hierarchy since valuation is
based on unobservable inputs.

The Group has no restrictions on the realizability of its investment properties and no contractual
obligations to cither purchase, construct or develop investment properties or for repairs, maintenance
and enhancements,

13.

Accounts Payable and Accrued Expenses

2019 2018
Current portion of deposits payable B7,063,978 £5,013,921
Accounts payable 388,733 445,706
Accrued professional fees 1,588,265 1,475,318
Government payables 1,289,884 1,149,942
Deferred rental income 8,400

£10,339,260 P8 084,887
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Accounts payable are generally noninterest-bearing payabies to third party coniractors with a credit
terrss of 30 days.

Deposits payable pertain to deposits made by tenants for the lease of a portion of the Group’s
condominium spaces and will be refunded to the lessee after the lease term.

. Retirement Benefit Obligation

The existing regulatory framework, Republic Act (RA) No. 7641, The Retirement Pay Law, requires a
provision for retirement pay to qualified private sector employees in the absence of any retirement
plan in the entity, provided however that the employee’s retirement benefits under any collective
bargaining and other agreements shall not be less than those provided under the law. The law does
not require minimum fonding of the plan.

The Group has an unfunded defined benefit pension plan covering substantially all its regular
employees. Retirement benefits under the plan are based on a percentage of latest monthly salary and
years of credited service,

The table below summarizes the components of retirement benefit expense recognized in the
consolidated statements of income, the remeasurement effects recognized in the consolidated
statements of comprehensive income and the amounts recognized in the consolidated statements of
financial position,

2019 2018 2017
Balances at beginning of year £12,927,729 £12,075,212 £11,305,731
Retirement benefit expense in profit or
Joss:
Current service costs 881,065 765,126 765,337
Interest costs 042,345 614,751 543,683
1,823,410 1,379,877 1,309,020
Benefits paid {230,093) - -
Remeasurements in other comprehensive
income:
Experience adjustment 3,304,354 (170,110) (490,024)
Changes in financial assumptions 459,210 (357,250) (49,515)
3,823,564 (527,360) (539,539)
Balances at end of year P18.,344,610 212,627,729 £12,075,212

Actuarial gains on retirement benefit obligation attributable to the equity holders of the Parent
Company amounted to £3.0 million and £0.4 million as of December 31, 2019 and 2018,
respectively.

The principal actuarial assumptions used in determining retirement benefit obligation for the Group’s
retirement plan are as follows:

2019 2018 2017
Discount rates 4.80% 7.30% 5.10%
Salary increase rates 5.00% 5.00% 5.00%
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sighificant assumption on the defined bencfit obligation as of December 31, 2019,2018 and 2017
assuming if ail other assumptions were held constant:

Effect on defined benefit obligation

2019 2018 2017

Discount rates +50 basis points

-50 basis points

Future salary increases +50 basis points
-50 basis points

(B102,264)  (270,075)  (P90,308)

109,452 73,811 95,848

£71,365 P48,590 P71,572
(65,234) (45,440} (67,039)

The average duration of the retirement benefit obligation as of Deceinber 31, 2019 and 2018 is

5 years.

Shown below is the maturity profile analysis of the undiscounted benefit payments:

2019 2018 2017
More than 1 year to 5 years 219,184,268 P13,593,520 P12,808,743
More than 5 years to 10 years 380,825 1,005,504 542,288
More than 10 years to 15 years 351,459 343,315 363,441
More than 15 years to 20 years 5,333,933 4,631,708

B25,250,485 P19,574,047 $13,714,472

15. Income Taxes

The Group’s provision for current income tax in 2019, 2018 and 2017 are as follows:

2019 2018 2017
Reguiar corporate income tax 210,642,931 P3,618.264  P10,788,556 ;
Final tax on interest income 3,712,380 2,446,789 2,609,051
£14,355,311 26,065,053  PR13,397,607 ;

The reconciliation of income tax computed at the statutory income tax rate to provision for income

tax shawn in profit or loss is as follows:

2019 2018 2017
Al statutory tax rate of 30%: £13,123,005 B6,293,25(0 £27.233.378
Additions to (reductions in) income
tax resulting from:
Interest income already
subjected to final tax (5,107,159) {1,567,615) {4,062,955)
Nendeductible expenses 4,001,918 2,888,469 896,174
Equity in net losses (carnings) of
associates (1,603,222) 4,191,661 {12,259,350)
Movement in unrecognized net
deferred income tax asset - (3,789,070) (318,599)
Nontaxable dividend income (320,582) (125,071) (110,495)
£10,093,960 7,891,624 P11,378,153
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The Group’s net deferred income taxes as of December 31, 2019 and 2018 are as follows:

2019 2018
Recognized in profit or loss
Deferred income tax assets on:
Allowance for expected credit fosses on
receivables, due from related parties and
financial assets at FVQCI P7,613,930 B6,938,927
Retitement benefit obligation 4,262,431 3,715,408
Accrued rent 152,533 281,893
Deferred income tax liabilities on:
Unrealized foreign exchange gains (2,898,673} (6,981,331}
Gains on fair value changes of foreign
financial assets at FVTPL {4,463,955) (2,704,443)
4,666,260 1,190,454
Recognized in OCI
Deferred income lax assels on:
Net unrealized valuation losses on financial
assets at FYOQCI 4,529,487 -
Actuarial losses on retirement benefit obligation 1,309,981 162,91
Deferred income tax liabilities on:
Net unrealized valuation gains on financial
assets at FVQCI - (6,083,740)
5,839,468 (5,920,829)
Net deferred income tax asseis (liabitities) £10,505,734 (84,730,375

No deferred income tax assets were recognized for the following deductible temporary differences as
it is not probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow the benefit of the deferred

income fax assets to be utilized:

2019 2018
Allowance for impairment losses on due ffom
related parties £150,796,579 R150,796,579
Allowance for impairment losses on investment in
an associate 94,830,129 94,830,129
Provision for legal obligation 5,000,000 5,000,000
£250,626,708 P250,626,708

16. Equity

a. Common Stock

In accordance with Revised SRC Rule 68, below is a summary of the Group’s track record of

registration of securities.

MNumber of sharcs registered

Issue/offer price

Date of approval

Common shares
Common shares

1,000,000,000
9,000,000,600

70,01 December 8, 1982

.01
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The details of the Group’s capital stock (number of shares and amounts) are as follows:

Common stock - 1 par value
Class A
Authorized - 600 miilion shares
ssued - 292,610,118 shares £292.610,118
Class B
Authorized ~ 400 million shares
Issued -~ 189,217,535 shares 189,217,535
P481,827.653

Class A and B common stockholders enjoy the same rights and privileges, exeept that Class A
shares may be owned by, transferred to and subscribed only by Filipino citizens or corporations,
partnerships and associations organized under the laws of the Philippines, of which 60% of the
common stock outstanding is owned by citizens of the Philippines. Class B shares may be issued,
transferred or sold to any person, corporation, partnership or association regardless of nationality.

In 1979, the registrant listed with the PSE (or its predecessor, Manila Stock Exchange) its
cormmon stock under its previous name, Uttrana Energy and Resource Corporation, where it
offered 1,000,000,000 shares to the public at the issue price of 0.0} per share.

On July 28, 1997, the SEC approved the increase in the Group’s authorized capital stock from
10,000,000,000, dividcd into 6,000,000,000 Class A common shares with par value of

£0.01 per share and 4,000,000,000 Class B common shares with par value of £0.01 per share 1o
1,000,000,000 common shares, divided into 600,000,000 Class A common shares with par value
of #1 per share and 400,000,000 Class B common shares with par value of 21 per share,

On November 26, 2000, the BOD approved the issuance, out of the authorized common stock, of
192,413,090 shares at #1 par value which will be offered through a pre-emptive stock rights issue
and detachable stock watrants, as follows: (a) 96,206,545 shases consisting of 58,377,278 Class
A shares and 37,829,267 Class B shares, {0 be offered in two tranches, the First Tranche
consisting of 48,103,272 shares of stock and the Second Tranche consisting of 48,103,273 shares
of stock, to which each stockholder may subscribe on a pre-emptive rights basis, and (b) the
balance of 96,206,545 shares to be offered through detachable stock warrants, which shali entitle
each stockholder to subscribe to one share of stock for every one share of stock of the same class
that such stockholder subscribe to out of this stock rights issue.

The Group’s application to [ist additional 192,413,090 common shares with a par value of

P1 per share through pre-emptive rights issue and detachable subscription warrants was approved
by the PSE on February 27, 2002 and by the SEC on April 5, 2002,
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The exercise periads and expiration dates of the Group’s subscription warrants are as follows:

Number Exercise Expiration
of Shares Periods Dates
First Tranche:
Class A coinmon shares 29,188,639 June 4, 2002 to
Class B common shares 18,914,633 June 3, 2007 June 3, 2007
48,103,272
Second Tranche:
Class A common shares 29,188,639 May 9, 2003 to
Class B common shares 18,914,634 May 8, 2008 Mavy 8, 2008
48,103,273
96,206,545

Futl payment of each subscription under the First Tranche was made within the offer period
approved by the PSE and the SEC, and the full payment of each subscription under the second
tranche shall be due and payable one year from the last day of the offer period. With the full
subscription of the Pre-Emptive Rights Stock Offering, the Group’s outstanding common stock
increased 1o 481,032,728 common shares of stock, consisting of 291,886,391 Class A eommon
shares and 189,146,337 Class B common shares, all with par value of 21 per share.

With the complete exercise of all Detachable Stock Warrants, the Group wili have an outstanding
common stock of 577,239,273 shares, consisting of 350,263,669 Class A comimon shares and
226,975,604 Class B common shares, all with par value of #1 per share. [lowever, as of
December 31, 2007, 723,727 Class A common stock warrants and 71,198 Class B comnion stock
warrants were exercised and 28,464,912 Class A common stock warrants and 18,843,435 Class B
common stock warrants expired. As of December 31, 2008, 29,188,639 Class A common stock
warrants and 18,914,634 Class B common stock warrants expired due to non-exercise of stock
warrants before expiration date. Afler the expiration of the said warrants, the Group’s
outstanding common stock amounted to P481,827,653 with additiona} paid-in capital of
R144,759,977. There have been no movements since 2008,

The Parent Company has 480 and 477 stockholders as of December 31, 2019 and 2018,
respectively.

Treasury Shares

The Group’s treasury shares pertains to shares of the Parent Company acquired or held by its
subsidiaries. For consolidation purposes, the costs of these shares are presented under the
“Treasury shares” account in the equity section of the consotidated statements of financial
posiiion.

In 2018, PIEI purchased 168,000 additional shares of the Parent Company with a total cost of
£0.8 million. These are composed of 126,000 Class A shares and 42,000 Class B shares, costing
£0.6 million and #0.2 million, respectively.

In 2019, PIEI purchased 45,000 Class A shares additionaj shares of the Parent Company with a
fotal cost of £0.2 million.
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As of December 31, 2019 and 2018, the Group’s treasury shares are as follows:

Shares Amount
2019 2018 2019 2018
Balance at beginning of year 98,042,387 97,874,387 B101,777,276 $100,946,956
Additioens 45,000 168,000 192,050 830,320
Balance at end of year 08,087,387 98,042,387 P101,969,326 R101,777,276

¢. Retained Eamings

Retained earnings is restricted to the extent of the acquisition price of the treasury shares
amounting to £102.0 million and £101.8 million as of December 31, 2019 and 2018,
respectively. The balance of retained earnings includes the accummlated equity in net carnings
of the subsidiaries and associates amounting to £1,033.2 million and 21 ,005.5 milfion as at
December 31, 2019 and 2018, respectively. Such amounts are not available for distribution
until such time that the Parent Company receives the dividends from the subsidiaries and
associates. The balance of retained earnings also includes net cumulative unrealized gaing on
financial assets at FVTPL amounting to 255.1 million and £29.8 million as at December 3 i,
2019 and 2018, respectively.

Following are the dividends declared and paid by the Parent Company in 2019, 2018 and 20} 7:

2019
Declaration Dividend per
date Record date Payment dale Description share  Total amount
July 16, 2019 Sept. 23, 2019 Oct. 14, 2019 Regular BO.10 48,182,765
July 16, 2019 Oct. 23, 2019 Nov, 14, 2019 Regular 0.10 48,182,766
P96,365,531
2018
Declaration Dividend per
date Record date Paymenl daie Description share Tota} amount
July 26, 2018 Augp. 15,2018 Sept. 5, 2018 Regular P0.10 P48,182,765
July 26,2018 Sept.14, 2018 Cct. 5, 2018 Repgular 0.10 48,182,766
£06,365,531
2017
Declaration Dividend per
dafe Record date Payment date Description share Total amount
July 31, 2017 Avg. 22,2017 Sept. 15, 2017 Regular BD.10 B48,182,765
July 312017 Sept.21, 2017 Qet. 17, 2017 Regular 010 48182766
06,365,531

The dividends attributable to treasury shares amounted to #19.6 million in 2019, 2018 and 2017.

17. Related Party Transactions

Parties are considered to be related if one party has the ability to control, directly or indirectly, the
other party or exercise significant influenee over the other party in making financial and operating
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decisions. Parties are also considered to be related if they are subject to common controf or common

significant influence.

The Group, through its BOD, recognizes that transactions between and among related parties creates

-42 -

strategic financial commercial, and econornic benefits to the Group and its stakeholders. In this

regard, refated party transactions and generally allowed provided that when related party transactions
amount to ten percent (10%}) or higher of the Group’s total consolidated assets, it shall be considered

as Material Related Party Transactions and shall be subject to arms-length principle and BOD

approval as herein provided.

A summary of outstanding balances and transactions with related parties, net of allowance for
impairment loss and presented under “Due from related parties” account, are as follows:

Transaclions  Cuistanding
during the year balances Terms Conditions
Associates!
BPO
Rent income 2019 B1.406,805 B150,163 On demand,; Unseeured;
2018 1,385,721 143,886 nonimerest- Unimpaired
bearing
Payroll services expense 2019 112,847 - On demand; Unsccured;
2018 123,543 - notinieresl- Unimpaired
bearing
Dividends 2019 13,999,897 16,885,116 On demand; Unsecored;
2018 12,250,000 15,749,974 noginierest- Unimpaired
bearing
PTC
Dividends (see Note 9) 2019 15,712,703 - On deinand, Unsecured,
2018 32,496,750 - noninterest- Unimpaired
bearing
MUDC
Advances 2019 55,046 55,046 On demand; Unsecured;
2018 {1,956,805) - noninterest- Unimpaired
hearing
Under common control
Cther related parties
Advances 2019 25,860 320,586 On demand, Unsecured;
2018 7,310 360,406 noninterest- Unimpaired
bearing
2019 B17.410,911
2018 P16,254,266

The related party transactions are settled in cash.
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Movement in the expected credit losses on due from related parties are as follows:

2019 2018
Receivables from related party P189,185,737 P189,164,234
Dividends receivable 16,885,116 15,749,974
206,070,853 204,914,208
Allowance [or;
Expected credit losses 188,659,942 188,797,524
Recovery of allowance for impairment losses - {137,582)
188,659,942 188,659,942
$17410,911 16,254,266

Allowance for impairment loss is mainly attributable to advances to MUDC, among others.

Compensation of the key management personnel are as follows:

2019 2018 2017

Salaries and wages £8,493,141 B8,493,141 R7,721,038
Other benefits 1,415,524 1,466,732 1,326,840
£9.908,665 R9959,873 29,047,878

18. Earnings per Share

The following table presents information necessary to compute the basic/dilutive EPS:

2019 2018 2017
Net income attributable to equity
holders of the parent P32,205281 $£12,088,289 £77,729,401
Weighted average number of ordinary shares
outstanding for basic and difuted EPS 383,959,910 384,033,808 384,060,813
Basic and diluted earnings per share (.08 P0.03 £0.20

The Group has no potential dilutive instruments issued as of December 31, 2019, 2018 and 2017,

19. Segment Information

The primary purpose of the Group is to invest in real and personal properties. The Group operates
mainly in one reportable business segment which is investing and one reportable geographical
segment which is the Philippines.

20. Commitments and Contingencies

a. The Group leases a portion of its condominium spaces. The Group recognized rental income
amounting to £25.1 million, 23.2 million, and £20.8 million, in 2019, 2018 and 2017,
respectively. Future minimum rental income of £25.7 miltion from existing rental agreements
will be recognized in 2020 and 2021, The lease agreements between the Parent Company and its
lessees have terms of one to five years and can be renewed upon the written agreement of the
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Parent Company and the lessees. Deposits made by the tenants amounting to £9.8 miliion and
£7.2 million as of December 31, 2019 and 2018, respectively, will be returned to the lessees after
the lease term.

b.  As of December 31, 2019 and 2018, the Group has a provision for legal obligation amounting to
£5.0 million, for claim arising from lawsuit filed by a third party, which is awaiting decision by
the courts. Probable cost has been estimated in consultation with the Parent Company’s Icgal
counsel. In2019, cash amounting to £26.3 miltion has been restricted and recorded as part of
“Other noncurrent assets” in relation to the Company’s ongoing legal proceeding. Management
and its legal counsels belicve that the Parent Company has substantial legal and factual bases for
its position and is of the opinion that losses arising from these legal actions, if any, will not have
material adverse fmpact on the Parent Company’s financial position and results of operations.

21. Financial Risk Management Objectives and Policies

Risk Management Structure

The BOD is mainly responsible for the overall risk management approach and for the approval of
risk strategies and principles of the Group. It has also the overall responsibility for the development
of risk strategies, principles, frameworks, policies and limits. It establishes a forum of discussion of
the Group’s approach to risk issues in order to make relevant decisions.

Financial Risk Management Objcctives and Policies

The principal financial instruments of the Group consist of cash and cash equivalents and
investments in equity and debt securities. The main purpose of these financial instrinments is to place
excess cash in income-earning investments. The Group has various other financial assets and
liabilities such as receivables, duc from related parties, accounts payable and accrued expenses and
dividends payable which arise directly from its operations.

The main risks arising from the Group’s financial instruments are credit risk, liquidity risk and market
risk (1.e., intcrest rate risk, foreign currency risk and equity price risk). The Group’s management
reviews and approves policies for managing each of these risks and they are summarized below. The
Group also monitors the market price risk arising from all financial instruments.

The magnitudes of these risks that have arisen over the year are discussed below.

Credit Risk
Credit risk is the risk of loss that may arise on outstanding financial instruments should a
counterparty default on its obligation,

The Group is exposed to credit risk primarity because of its investing and operating activities.

The Group is exposed to credit risk arising from the counterparties (i.e., foreign currency
denominated debt instruments, short-term investments, fixed income deposit and receivables) to its
financial assets.

Credit risk management

In managing credit risk on these investments, capital preservation is paramount. The Group trades
only with recognized and creditworthy third parties. For investments in bonds, funds are invested in
highly recommended, creditworthy debt instruments that provides satisfactory interest yield and
capital appreciation. Investments in equity securities represent investments in companies with good
dividend track record, as well as capital appreciation. The investment portfolio mix between debt
and equity is reviewed regularly by the Group’s President and Treasurer.
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With respeet to credit risk arising from other financial assets of the Group, which consist of cash and
cash equivalents, receivables and due from related parties, the Group’s President and Treasurer
monitor these financial assets on an ongoing basis with the result that the Group’s exposure to
impairment losses is not significant.

Credit risk exposures

At reporting date, the Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk is equal to the carrying amount of
cash and cash equivalents, receivables, due from related parties, and FVOC] financial assets
recognized in the eonsolidated statements of {inanciaf position. The Group’s financial assets are not
covered by collateral from counterparties.

Credit risk concentration profile
The Group has no significant concenirations of credit risk.

Credit quality
As of December 31, 2019 and 2018, the credit qualities per class of financial assets are as follows:
Neither past due nor impaired Past due hut Individuaily 2019
Hligh Grade Standard Grade not impaired impaired Tatal
Financial agsets at amortized cost:
Cash and cash equivalenis® 582,240,670 - | f B582.240,670
Receivables 5,906,57¢ - 96E,I68 6,867,938
Due fram related partics 17,410,911 - 188,059,242 206,070,853
Financial assets at FYOCI 297,385,177 - 3,127,676 300,812,853
£902,943,328 B ?-- P192,748,986 #1,095.692,314
*Exchiding cash on hand
Neijther past due nor impaired Past due but Individually 2018
High Grade  Standard Grade notl impaired impaired Total
Financial assets al amortized cosl:
Cash and cash cquivalents* B371,361,707 P 12-- P R571,361,707
Reccivables 7,282,381 - - 961,368 8,243,749
e from related parties 16,254,266 - - 188,659,942 204,914,208
Financial asseis al FY QU] 427,003,028 - - 3,127,676 431,031,604
P1,022 802,282 B P $192,748986  P1.215,551, 268

*Excluding cash on hand

High grade financial assets

High grade receivables pertain to due from refated parties and customers with good payment history.
These receivables are considered to be of good quality and expected to be collectible without
incurring any credit losses. Other high grade financial assets reflect the investment grade quality of
the investments and/or counterparty and realizability is thus assured.

Standard grade financial assets

Receivables from customers who settle their obligations with tolerable delays are classified under
standard grade. Other standard grade financial assets are eonsidered moderately realizable. There
are no standard grade financial assets as of December 31, 2019 and 2018.

Impairment assessment

The main considerations for impairment assessment include whether any payments are overdue or if
there are any known difficulties in the cash flows of the counterparties. The Group determines
allowance for each significant receivable on an individual basis. Among the items that the Group
considers in assessing impairment is the inability to collect from the counterparty based on the
contractual terms of the receivables. Receivables included in the specific assessment are nonmoving
accounts receivable, accounts of defaulted companies and accounts from closed companies.
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In 2019 and 2018, the Group applies a general approach in calcutating ECL. The Group tracks
changes in credit risk and recognizes a loss allowance based on either a §2-month or lifetime ECL at
each reporting date.

The Group has the following financial assets that are subject 1o the expected credit loss model:

» Cash and Cash equivalents. As of December 31, 2019 and 2018, the ECL relating to the cash
and cash equivalents of the Group is minimal as these are deposited in reputable banks which
have good bank standing, and is considered to have low credit risk.

*  Receivables. As of December 31, 2019 and 2018, the ECL relating to receivables of the Group is
minimal as these mainly pertain to interest and dividends receivables and have low credit risk.

»  Due from Related Parties. The ECL for amounis due from related parties as of December 31,
2019 and 2018 pestain to the accounts of defaulted companies and accounts from closed
companies,

»  Debt Instrumenis measured at Fair Value through Other Comprehensive Income. The Group
recognized aliowance relating to one debt instrument due to the sudden drop of its fair valve in
2015. No other impairment [oss was recognized. The probability of default and loss given
default of each debt instrument were obtained from Bloomberg.

The table below shows the financial assets per stage of aflocation and by credit risk rating grades as at
Becember 31, 2019:

Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 2019

12-month ECL. Liletime ECL Lifetime ECL Total

High grade P818,161,819  $£63,603,920 - £881,765,739
Standard grade - - - -
Default - — 151,944,851 151,944,851
Gross carrying amount 818,161,819 63,603,920 151,944,851  1,033,710,590
Loss aljowance {3,443,524)  (40.286,439)  (151,362,549) (195,092,512)
Carrying amount $814,718,295  #£23,317,481 £582,302 P838,618,078
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stape 3 2018

12-month ECL.  Lifetime ECL.  Lifetiine ECL Total

High grade £832,215,144 £63,823,086 P PBRO96,038,230
Standard grade - - - -
Default - - 152,834,789 152,834,789
Gross carrying amount 832,215,144 63,823,086 152,834,789 1,048,873,019
Loss allowance (2,709,111)  (40,286,439)  (151,362,549) (194,418,099)
Canrving amount £829,446,033 P23,536,047 P1,472,240 £854,454,920

Ligquidity Risk

Liqudity risk is the risk that the Group will encounter difficulty in meeting financial obligations due
to shortage of funds.

The Group’s approach to managing liquidity risk is to ensure that it will always have sufficient
liquidity to meet its Habilities when they are due and this is done by primarily investing in highly
liquid investments and maintaining a significant amount of cash and cash equivalents and pre-
terminable investments in its portfolio.
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The following table summarizes the maturity profile of the Group’s financial liabilities as of
December 31, 2019 and 2018 based on contractual undiscounted cash flows. The table also analyzes

the maturity profile of the Group’s financial assets in order to provide a complete view of the Group’s

contractual commitments. The analysis into refevant maturity groupings is based on the remaining
period at the end of the reporting period to the contractual maturity dates.

2019
On demand Within 1 year More than 1 year Total
Financial Assets:
Loans and receivables
Cash and cash equivalents 34,519,227 $547,731,443 B B582,240,670
Receivables 5,906,570 - 5,906,570
Due from related parties - 17,410,911 - 17,410,911
Iinancial asscts af FYTPL 248,646,828 - - 248,646,828
Financial assels at FYOC] - 582,302 299,930,551 300,512,853
Total linancial asscts 181,166,055 571,631,226 199,938,551 1,154,729,832
Financial Liabilities:
Accounis payable and accrued
expenses® - 9,049,376 - 9,049,376
Dividends payable ~ 6,235,209 6,235,209
Total inanecial liabilitics -~ 15,284,585 -~ 15,284,585
Net financial assets $283,166,055 P556,348,641 $299,930,551 £1,139,445,247
*Excluding statitory payvables
2018
On demand Within 1 year  More than | year Total
Financial Assets:
Loans and teceivables
Cash and cash equivalents P57,082,264 P514,288,762 L P371,371,026
Receivables - 7,282,381 - 7,282,381
Due from related patties - 16,254,266 16,254,266
Financial assets at FVTPL 204,738,312 - - 204,738,312
Financial assets at FYO{] - 6,945 819 424,085,785 431,03],604
Total linancial assets 261,820,576 544,771,228 424,085,785 1,230,677,589
Financial Liabilities:
Accounts payable and accroed
expenses® - 6,934,945 - 6,934,945
Dividends payable 5,139,021 - 5,139,021
Total financial liabilities - 12,073,966 - 12,073,966
Net financiaj assects #261,820,576 532,697,262 B424,085,785 P1,218,603,623

*E.\'dud:'n,g satutory pavahies

Market Risks

Market risk 1s the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate
because of changes in market prices.

The Group’s activities expose it primarily to the financial risks of changes in interest rates, foreign
currency exchange rates and equity prices. There has been no change in the Group’s exposure to
market risks or the manner in which it manages and measures the risk.

a. Interest rate risk

Cash flow interest rate risk is the risk that the future cash flows of a financial instrument wiil
fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates. Fair value interest rate risk is the risk that
the fair value of a financial instrument will fluctuate due to changes in market interest rates.
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The Group derives majority of its revenue from interest-bearing placements and bonds.
Accordingly, the Group is subject to financial risk arising from changes in interest rates. The
Group manages interest rate risk by investing mainly on fixed conpon bonds and other
investments, By doing so, the Group is assured of future interest revenues from such
investments,

Since the Group invests on fixed coupon interest bonds and other investments, the Group is not
exposed significantly to cash flow interest rate risk,

The following table demonstrates management’s best estimate of the sensitivity to a reasonable
possible change in interest rates, with all other variables held constant, of the Group’s income
before incame tax due to changes in fair values of FVOCI financial assets in debt securities (see
Note 10):

2019 2018
Change in interest rate (percentage)
+10% £23,592,115 26,085,344
~10% (23,592,115} (26,085,344)

There is no other impact on equity other than those already affecting the income before income
tax in profit or Joss.

Foreign currency risk

Foreign currency risk is the risk that the fair value or fulure cash flows of the Group’s financial
instruments will fluctuate because of changes in foreign currencies.

In the normal course of business, the Group enters into transactions denominated in US dollar and
other foreign currencies. As a result, the Group is subjeet to transaction and translation exposures
resulting from currency exchange rate fluctuations. The Group regularly monitors outstanding
financial assets and liabilities in foreign currencies and 1naintains them at a level responsive to the
current exchange rates so as to minimize the risks related to these foreign-currency-denominated
assels.

TR




-49.

Information on the Group’s foreign-currency-denominated monetary assets and their Philippine
peso equivalent as of December 31 are as follows:

2019 2018
Exchange Original Peso  Exchanpe Original Peso
Currency Rate Currency LEquivalent Rate Currency FEquivalent
Cash UsD B50.64 7,926,013 B401,373,298 R52.58 6,854,661 P360,418,090
EUR 56.35 560 31,556 60.31 560 33,774
HKD 6.52 59,919 390,672 6.7344 5,184 34,911
SGb 56.35 - - 38.4706 2,234 821 85,974,921
Py 0.46 44,714 20,568
Receivables usp 50.64 90,702 4,593,149 52.58 62,472 3,284 780
SGI» 37.49 - 38.4706 608,701 23,417,088
Financial assets at
FVTPL UsD 50.64 2,848,486 144,247,331 52.58 2,507,863 131,863,453
HKD 6.52 3,231,830 21,071,532 6.7344 5564312 37,472,303
EUR 56.35 253,747 14,298,643 60.3110 195,190 12,013,351
CNY 7.25 309,580 2,244,455 7.6773 293,020 2,249,602
5Gb 37.49 168,500 6,317,065 38.4706 146,500 5,635,943
IPY 0.46 11,414,400 5,250,624 0.445 8,766,000 3,500,870
Financial assets at
FVOC(I Usb 50.64 4,840,069 245,101,094 52.58 4,807,350 281,326,122
NTD 1.6% 19,710,443 33,310,649 17137 61,443,047 105,294,950
HKD 6.52 2,678,886 17,466,337 6.7344 353,884 2,383,193

The Group has no foreign-currency-denominated monetary labilities as of December 31, 2019
and 2018.

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a reasonable possible change in the
foreign currencies exchange rates based on past foreiga currencies exchange rates and
macroeconomic forecasts for 2019, with all other variables heid constant, of the Group’s 2019
and 2018 income before income tax.

The sensitivity analysis includes only outstanding foreign currency denominated monetary items
and adjusts their franslation at the period end for the following percentage change in foreign
currency rates:

2019
Effect on income before tax

Original Currency Percentage Strengthened Weakened

US doliar 5% $39,761,818 ( R39,761,818)
Hong Kong dollar (HKD) 5% 1,945,293 {1,945,293)
Taiwan dollar 5% 1,662,083 (1,662,083
E.M.U, euro (EUR) 5% 716,525 (716,525)
Singapere Dollar 5% 315,861 (315,861)
Chinese Yunan 5% 112,241 (112,241)

Japanese Yen 5% 265,221 (265,221)
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2018
E(flect on income belore tax

Oripinal Currency Percentage Strengthened Weakened
US doffar 5% £37,910,007 (R37,910,097)
Hong Kong dollar {HKID) 5% 1,994,520 {1,994,520)
Taiwan dotlar 5% 5,264,747 (5,264,747)
EM.U. euro (EUR) 5% 602,356 {602,156)
Singapore Dollar 3% 281,797 (281,797)
Chinese Yuan 5% 112,480 (112,480}
Japanese Yen 5% 195,044 (195,044}

There is no other impact on the Group’s equity other than those already affecting the consolidated
statements of income.

Equity price risk

Equity price risk is the risk that the fair values of equities decrease as a result of changes in the
levels of the equity indices and the valves of individual stocks. The equity price risk exposure
arises from the Group’s financial assets at FVTPL. and investments in AFS equity securities, For
investments in Philippine equities, majority of funds are invested in equities listed in the PSE.

The Group measures the sensitivity of its equity securities by using PSE, NYSE and HKEx
indices fluctuations and its effect to respective share prices.

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a reasonably possible change in the equity
price based on past price performance and maeroeconomic forecast for 2019 and 2018, with all

other variables held constant, of the Group’s income before income tax and equity:

Effect on income before income tax:

2019 2018
Financial assets at FVTPL;
Change in stock market index (%)
+10% P24,864,683 £20,473,831
~10% (24,864,683) (20,473,831)

‘There is no other impact on the Group’s equity other than those already affecting the income
before income tax,

Effect on equity:

2019 2018
Investment in equily securities (financial assets at
FVYOCi):
Change in club share prices (%)
+10% £9,699,262 R17,017,817
~10% (9,699,262) (17.017.817)
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22. Fair Value of Financial Instruments

The Group has determined hat the carrying amounts of cash and cash equivalents, receivables, due
from related parties, accounts payable and accrued expenses and dividends payable, based on their
nofional amounts, reasonably approximate their fair values because these are short~term in nature.

Fair values of financial assets at FVTPL and quoted financial assets at FYOCI are based on price

guolations as at December 31, 2019 and 2(1 &,

The following tables show the Group’s fair value measurement hierarchy of its financial assets at

FVTPL and FVOCI.

2019
Carrying Value Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total Falr Value
Financial assets at FVYTPL, $248,646,528 B248,646. 828 P B P24R,646,828
Financial assets at FYOCI
Quoted del seenrities 235,921,149 235,921,149 - - 235,921,149
Quoted cquity sccarities 58,075,827 58,075,827 - - 58,075,827
Unquoted equity securities 6,513,877 - 6,515,877 - 6,515,877
549,159 681 #542,643,804 8,515,677 - #£549,159 641
2018
Carrying Value Level | Level 2 Level 3 Total Fair Value
Financial assets at FVTPL R204,738,312 #204,738,312 - P #204,738.312
Financial assets st FYOC!
Quoled dely seeurities 260,853,427 260,853,437 - - 200,853,427
Cuoted equily securities 132,605,290 132,605,290 - - 132,605,290
Unguoted cquity securilies 37,572,877 - - - 36413677
B635,769,016 P599,3506,239 P36,413,677 3. P635,769.916

As of December 31, 2019 and 2018, there were no transfers between Level 1 and Level 2 fair value
measurements. Also, there were no transfers into and out of Level 3 fair value measurements.

23,

Capital Management

The primary objective of the Group’s capital management is to ensure that it maintains a strong credit
rating and healthy capital ratios in order to support its business and maximize sharcholder value.

The Group manages its capital structure, which pertains to its equity, and makes adjustment to it, in
light of changes in economic conditions. To maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group may
adjust the dividend payment to shareholders, return capital to shareholders or issue new shares.

The total core capital considered by the Group as of December 31, 2019 and 2018 are as follows:

2019 2018
Common stock P481,827,653 £481,827,653
Additional paid-in capital 144,759,977 144,759,977
Retained earnings 1,185,978,0067 1,230,524,692
Treasury shares (101,969,326) (101,777,276)
Tota] core capital P1,710,596,37F  R],755,335,046
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24, Changes in Liabilities Arising from Financing Activities

‘The following shows the changes in the Group's liabilities arising from its financing activitics in
2019 and 2018:

As at As at

January 1, Dividend  December 31,

2019 Cash flows declaration 2019

Dividends payable 5,139,021 (B75,655,718) £76,751,906 £6,235,209
As at Asat

January 1, Dividend December 31,

2018 Cash flows declaration 2018

Dividends payable £0,636,554 {i¥78,050,892) £76,553,359 £5,139.021

25. Events After the Reporting Date

In a move to contain the COVID-19 outbreak, on March 13, 2020, the Office of the President of the
Philippines issued a Memorandum directive to impose stringent social distancing measures in the
National Capital Region effective March 185, 2020. On March 16, 2020, Presidential Proclamation
No. 929 was issued, declaring a State of Calamity throughout the Philippines for a period of six (6)
months and imposed an enhanced community quarantine (ECQ) throughout the island of Luzon until
Apri} 12, 2020, which was subsequently extended to April 30, 2020, National Capital Region (NCR)
and other high-risk areas were under modified ECQ until May 31, 2020. Starting June 1, 2020 until
June 15, 2020, Metro Manila and certain places in the Philippines were placed under general
community quarantine. These measures have caused disruptions to businesses and economic
activities, and ifs impact on businesses continue to evolve,

The Group considers the events surrounding the outbreak as non-adjusting subsequent events, which
do not impact its financial position and performance as of and for the year ended December 31, 2019.
The Group have not seen any significant impact to its operation resulting from the outbreak as of the
date of this report, but considering the evolving nature of this outbreak, the Group will continue to
monitor the situation to determine the possible impact 10 its financial position, performance and cash
flows in the future,
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F & J PRINCE HOLDINGS CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES

INDEX TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND
SUPPLEMENTARY SCHEDULES

Schedule 1 : Supplementary schedules required by Revised SRC Rule 68, Part 1I, Annex 68-J
Schedule H : Reconciliation of Retained Earnings Available for Dividend Declaration

{Part 1, 5B, Annex 68-D)
Schedule Il : Map of the relationships of the companies within the group (for investments

houses that are part of a conglomerate; Part 1, 5G)
Schedule IV Schedule of financial soundness indicators (Annex 68-E)



F & J PRINCE HOLDINGS CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES

SUPPLEMENTARY SCHEDULES UNDER ANNEX 68-J

PURSUANT TO REVISED SRC RULE 68
DECEMBER 31, 2019

Schedule A. Financial Assets

Financial Assets at FVTPL
Number of shares held
Name of issuing entity and association of each or principal amount of

Amount shown in the
staternent of financial

Income received and

issue bonds and notes position* accrued
Nickel 13,008,788 214,796,853 R
Berkshire Hathaway Inc - 3,250 37,273,689 -
Goldman Sachs Group Inc 1,045 12,166,418 161,636
HSBC Holdings 1,786 3,535,069 235,078
Dongfeng Motor Group Corporation Ltd. 50,000 2,388,187 116,969
SANOFI 1,000 5,050,195 125,857
Industrial and Commercial Bank of China 180,000 7,037 496 301,919
CTRIP,COM International Ltd, 5110 8,678,302 -
China Mobile Limitcd 10,000 4,268,111 173,804
ANHEUSER-BUSCIH INBEV SA/NV 1,000 4,097,296 72,360
CitiGroup Inc. 1,820 7,362,319 136,080
Wells Fargo & Co, 2,000 5,448,326 148,908
Amazon.com Inc, 200 18,713,076
China Constraction Bank 162,000 7,104,352 331,844
Kion Group AG 1,485 5,151,435 76,838
Bank of China Litd. 105,000 2,108,908 132,571
The TIX Companies inc. 2,668 8,248,851 -
Softbank Group Corporation 2,400 5,283,726 31,626
General Moters Co. 3,195 5,928,518 91,714
International Business Machines 600 4,072,269
Corporation (1IBM) -
Microsoft Corporation 816 6,515,874 61,090
Singapore Tclecommunications Limited 50,000 6,317,217 332,590
Amazon.coin Inc. Registered SHS 150 14,034,807 -
Facebook Inc. Registered SHS 1,000 10,392,834 -
PEPSICO Inc. Cap. 465 3,217,933 68,439
Cheung Kong Property Holdings 20,520 6,443,810 266,377
San Miguel Corporation "B" 12,464 2,032,878 2,050
San Miguel Corporation "A" 12,240 1,596,344 10,863
Ayala Corporation 4,078 3,203,269 16,924
Ayala Land 144,000 6,552,000 37,440
Meralco 10,754 3,372,454 66,705
Oriental Petroleum B 1,260,888,642 13,869,775 630,444
Philex Mining - A 335323 942 258 -
Philex Petrolewn 41,915 359.63] -
ABS - CBN Broadcasting 12,000 189,120 6,600
Aboitiz Equity 3,120 160,524 4,118
Petron Corporation 30,939 119,425 3,094
Others 213,279
Total £248,646,828 £3,643,938




Financial Asseis at FVYOC!

Number of shares held Amount shown in the
Name of issuing entity and association of or principal amount of statement of {inancial Income received and
cach issue bondg and notes position* acerucd
Venczuela GLB 100,000 £582,302 P26,501
Country Gardens 1,020,000 32,904,778 2,258,362
Petrobas GBL 540,000 27,262,502 1,553,390
Eletrobras 260,000 9,601,708 590,682
Turkeeli 250,000 11,740,431 737,614
Republic of Portugal 200,000 10,291,478 -
Petroleos Mexicanos 200,000 0.572,337 469,697
Theta Capital PTIE 975,000 40,159,138 3,383,764
ADBJA Investinent 400,000 18,741,708 1,210,755
CEMIEX Finance 128,000 6,047,857 566,023
Orazul Energy 200,000 9,441,450 577,840
VM Holdings 200,000 9,799,690 548,696
Greenko Investment 400,000 17,425,637 886,703
NBM US Hoidings 200,000 9,924,335 -
Cheung Kong Property Holdings 20,520 6,816,929 -
Hutehison Holdings Ltd 20,520 9,004,400 -
Toyota Motor Corp 1,290 8,320,223 -
Tagaytay Midlands 1 851,906 -
Batesin Island 1 5,801,255 -
Aslan Pharmaceuticals 2,431,388 30,128,480 -
RP Bonds 8,000,000 9,825,544 262,889
MRFGC 100,000 4,962,167 370,033
Calata Corporation 560,000 1,159,200 -
Ayala Land Inc. 144,00 9,767 -
Ayala Corporation 2,110 2,110

rLDT 400 4,000

Others 10,041,455
Total £300,512,853 13,442,951

*Amounts are based on the fair value of the instrument as of the reporting period.



F & J PRINCE HOLDINGS CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES

SUPPLEMENTARY SCHEDULES UNDER ANNEX 68-J
PURSUANT TO REVISED SRC RULE 68
DECEMBER 31, 2019

Schedule B. Amounts Receivable from Directors, Officers, Employees, and Principal
Stockholders (Other than Related Parties)

Name and
designation of Beginning Amounts Amounts Not Ending
debtor balances  Additions coliected  wriiten off Current current balances
Advances to
Officers and
763,762

Employees B30 862 236,000 B23,100 R 163,762 P




F & I PRINCE HOLDINGS CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES

SUPPLEMENTARY SCHEDULES UNDER ANNEX 68-J
PURSUANT TO REVISED SRC RULE 68
DECEMBER 31, 2019

Schedule C. Amounts Receivable from Related Parties which are eliminated during the
Consolidation of Financial Statements

Name and
designation Beginning Amounts Amounts Not DBalance at end of
of debtor balances Additions collected  written off Current  curent period

MCHC 8,599,095 R14,155343  R§ 599,095 P- 114,155,343 B P14,155,343



F & I PRINCE HOLDINGS CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
SUPPLEMENTARY SCHEDULES UNDER ANNEX 68-E

PURSUANT TO REVISED SRC RULE 68
DECEMBER 31, 2019

Schedule D, Long-term Debt

Amount shown under caption

‘Current position of long term  Amount shown under caption
Title of issue and type Amount authorized by debt’ in related statement of  ‘Long Term Debt’ in related
of obligation indenture financial position statement of financial position

- Not applicable -



F & J PRINCE HOLDINGS CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES

SUPPLEMENTARY SCHEDULES UNDER ANNEX 68-J
PURSUANT TO REVISED SRC RULE 68
DECEMBER 31,2019

Schedule D. Indebtedness to Related Parties (Long-Term Loans from Related Companics)

Name of related party Balance at beginning of period Balance at end of period
- Not applicable -




IF & J PRINCE HOLDINGS CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES

SUPPLEMENTARY SCHEDULES UNDER ANNEX 68-J

PURSUANT TO REVISED SRC RULE 68
DECEMBER 31, 2019

Schedule E. Guaraniees of Securities of Other Issuers

Name of issuing entity ~ Title of issue of

Amount owned

of securities guaranteed each class of Total amount by a person for
by the Group for which securitiecs  puaranteed and  which statement Nature of
this statement is filed guaranteed outstanding is filed guarantee

- Not applicable -




F & J PRINCE HOLDINGS CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES

SUPPLEMENTARY SCHEDULES UNDER ANNEX 68-J
PURSUANT TO REVISED SRC RULE 68

DECEMBER 31, 2019

Schedule F. Capital Stock

Number of shares
issued and
ouistanding as shown
under related

Number of
shares reserved
for options,

Number of statement of (inancial warrants, Number of Direciors,

shares position  conversion and shares held by Officers and
Title of issuc authorized caption other rights  Related Parties Employees Others
Class “A” 600,000,000 292,610,118 - 36,915,136 401,295,895 -
Class “B” 400,000,000 189,217,535 - 37,496,379 180,392 -




K & J PRINCE HOLDINGS CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES

SCHEDULE OF RETAINED EARNINGS AVAILABLE FOR DIVIDEND

DECLARATION
December 31, 2019

Unappropriated retained earnings, beginning P251,207,084
Net income during the year closed to retained earnings B43,291,061
Less:  Non-actualfunrealized income net of tax

Unrealized foreign exchange gain (loss) - net of tax (5,590,408)

Unrealized fair value gain (loss) on financial assets at

FVTPL (380,187)

Benefit from deferred taxes (3,868,581)
Actual/realized net income 53,130,236
Less:  Dividend declaration 96,365,531 43,235,294
Unappropriated retained earnings, as adjusted, ending 207,971,790
Less capital stock 626,587,630

Excess of eapital stock over unappropriated retained earnings

(P418,615,840)




"ou] ‘sa1e)s [BLOSOPU[ UBINUIEUL]

(pawmo 9400 1)
{(1q1d}

{pruno 2;001)
(Odd

uorerodioy) 1amod Ueonueur

L {Danm) vonerodion juowrdopasay
SN Uepedey

(paumo %4ey)

{paumo 94001}
(DLOW) uonelodio)) Burper]
teydey uej[odely
{powso 25001)
{(O@IDW) wozerodiony uswdo(easg
Aeay [euden) veypdely
(Peumo 9,001) (powno 25001}
(OW) Old)
uonuiodio)) oduqeyey uoneledioy) SUCNBACUUT 1SOMIUTO]
I
(Poumo 945¢) {PaUM0 %,/ ¢"p6) (PaumO %0¢)
{OdH) [euonzwou] (OHOW) QLD
umMosING $52901] SSaUISNE uogreiodio?) s3urproy fende;) uepedepy ucnyerodio]) serfojoutjony Isemimiod
!
Lope 1
p 1 4
nonerodio]y s3UIp[oY courd [ % 4

6107 ‘1€ QU3
dVIA ALVIHINOTONOD

SATAVIAISANS ANV NOLLVIOJdAOD SONIATOH ADNTId £ 2 4



¥ & J PRINCE HOLDINGS CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES

FINANCIAL SOUNDNESS INDICATOR
Deeember 31, 2019

2019 2018
LIQUIDITY ANALYSIS RATIO:
Current assets (a) P8S8,103,083 £840,244,025
Current labilities (b) 30,593,230 20,126,534
Current Ratio (a/bh) 29.03 41,75
Current assets less prepayments and other current assets {(c) P854,799,281 PR(6,591,804
Current liabilities (b) 30,593,230 20,126,534
Quick Ratio {c/b) 27.94 40.08
Total assets (d) P1,503,850,010 1,957,361,337
Total liabilities (¢) 51,664,606 39,811,989
Solvency Ratio (d/e) 36.85 49.17
FINANCIAL LEVERAGE RATIO:
Total liabilities (e} P51,664,606 239,811,980
Total assets (d) 1,903,850,010 1,957,361,337
Debt Ratio (e/d) 0.03 0.02
Total liabilities (&) P51,664,606 £39.811,989
Total equity () 1,852,185,404 1,917,549,348
Debt-to-Equity Ratio (e/f) 0.03 0.02
Interest Coverage N/A N/A
Total assets (d) P1,%03,850,010 P1,957,361,337
Total equity (f) 1,852,185,404 1,917,549,348
Asset to Equity Ratio (d/f) 1.03 1.02
PROFITABILITY RATIO:
Gross Profit Margin N/A
Net income (g) P33,649,391 P13,085,877
Revemes and income (h) 103,300,970 78,334,312
Net Profit Margin (g/h) 0.33 0.17
Net incone (g) P33,649,391 13,085,877
Total assets (d) 1,903,850,010 1,957,361,337
Return on Assets (g/d) 0.02 0.01
Net income (g} 33,649,391 P13,085,877
Total equity (f) 1,852,185,404 1,917,549,348
Return on Equity (g/f) 0,02 0,01
Current share price (i) B4.20 P4.62
Earnings per share (§) 0.03 0.03
Price/Earnings Ratio (i/j) 133.40 146.77




F & J PRINCE HOLDINGS CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARY
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET AS OF DECEMBER 31, 2019 AND DECEMBER 31, 2018

WITH VERTICAL PERCENTAGE ANALYSIS
VYERTICAL VERTICEL
PERCENTAGE PERCENTAGE
AUDITED ANALYSIS AUDITED ANALYSIS
DEC. 31,2019 DEC, 31,2019 DEC. 31,2018 DEC. 31, 2018
ASSETS
Current Assets
Cash and cash equivalenis 582252 670 30.59% 571,371,026 29.19%
Financial assels at fair value thry prolit or loss 248,646,828 13.07% 205,897,512 10.52%
Thue from related partics 17410911 0.91%% 16,254,266 {.83%
Receivables-net 5,906,570 2.31% 728238 0.37%
Current portion al avaitable for sale (AFS) invesiments . 0.00% - 0.00%
Current porticn of financial assets through FYOCE 582,302 0.03% 6,945 819 0.35%
Prepayment and olier current nssels 33 303 802 1.75% 13,652,221 172%
Totat Current Asscts 888,503,083 46,66% 841,403,225 43.00%
Noneurrent Assets
Receivables from related parties-net - 0.00% - 0.00%
lavestments in associales 277,599,655 14.58% 283,463,312 14.47%
Financial assets at FVYOCI -net of current partion 299 934,55] 15.75% 422,926,585 il
Avgilable-for-sale (AFS) investments-net of current portion - 3.00% - 0.00%
Property and Equipment-nel 7,283,124 0.33% 8,927 081 0.16%
Invesiment propetties 391,291 609 0.55% 399 807554 20.42%
Delerred income tax asset 10,505,734 0.55% - -
Other Noncurrenl Assets 29,136,257 1.53% 743,580 0.04%
Tatal Non-Current Asscts 1,015,746,927 53.34% [,115,958,112 57.00%
TOTAL ASSETS 1,903,850,010 100.00%  1,957,361,337 106.60%
VERTICAL VERTICAL
PERCENTAGE PERCENTAGE
AUDITED ANALYSIS AUDITED ANALYSIS
DEC. 31,2013 DEC. 31,2049 DEC, 31,2018 DEC, 3%, 2018
LIABILITIES & STOCKNOGLDERS EQUITY
Current Linbilities
Accounts Payable and accrued expenses 10,339 260 0,54% PO, 112,238 0.52%
Prividends payable 6,235,209 0.33% 5139021 0.26%
Income Trx Payable 9018761 0.47% 1,902 626 0,11
Provision for lepnl oblipaiion 5,000,000 0.26% 5,000,000 0.26%
Tatal Cuirrent Linbilitics 30,592,230 1.60% 22,153,885 1.13%
Non-Current Liabilitics
Deflerred inceme tax liabitities-net “ 0.00% 4,730,375 0.24%
Deposits payable 2,726,766 0.14% - -
Retirement benefit abligation 18,344 610 0.97% 12,927,729 0.67%
Tatat Non-Current Lisbilities 21,071,376 1.11% 17,658,104 0.90%
Noncurrent Liabititics
Stockholders’ Equity
Capital stack 481,827,653 25.31% 481 827 653 24.62%
Additionat paid in capital 144,759 977 7.60% 144,759,977 7.40%
Treasury shares (101,969,326} -5.36%  (101,777,276) -5.20%
MNet unreatized gains on financial assets st FYOC (18,558,195) -0,97% F7.432 186 0.89%
Unreatized pains on chanpes in fair value of AFS invastments 0 0.00% ¢ 0.00%
Actuarial Joss on tetirement benefil obligation {2,959.003) -0.16% (416,121} -0.02%
Accumulated share in other comprehensive income of assoe. 90,849,242 4.77% 72,344,371 3.70%
Retained earnings 1,185,978 066 62,30% 1,230,524 692 62.86%
Total Equity Attributaldle to Steckholders of the Company 1,779,928,414 93.49%  1,344,695,482 94.25%
Minorisy Interests 72256990 3.80% 72,853,866 3.72%
Totnl Stockholders’ Equity 1,852,185,404 97.29%  1,987,549,348 97.97%
TOTAL LIABILITIES & STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY 1,963,850,010 100.00%,  1,957.361,337 100.60%:

EXHIBIT 4"



EXHIBIT =5

Sehedule 1

IF & J PRINCE HOLDINGS CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
BREAKDOWN OF RECLEIVABLES
AS OF DECEMBER 31,2019, 2018 AND 2017

2019 2018 2017
Receivables:
Receivable from Relaled Pattics:
Business Process Quisourcing, Inlernational 216,950,130 215,893,860 P13,173.252
Magellan Utilities Development Corporation - -
Pointwest Technologies Corporation - = -
Others 460,781 360,400 287,417
Total Receivables from Related Pariies 4 R17,410911 § P16,254,266 P13,460,069
Interest Receivable 6,193,246 7,447,413 6,656,595
Receivable from Phitippine Depositary Insurance
Corporation (PDIC) - 500,000
Others ' (286,676) (165,032} 127,370
Total Receivables from Third Parties 25,906,570 127,282,381 127,283,965




EXHIBIT “57

Schedule 2

F & J PRINCE HOLDINGS CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES

BREAKDOWN OF ACCOUNTS PAYABLE AND ACCRUED EXPENSES
AS OF DECEMBER 31, 2019, 2018 AND 2047

20HY 2018 2017
Accounts payahle B3,077,153 P4435,7106 23,122,197
Deposit payable 4,375,558 5,013,921 5,420,699
Government payable 1,289,884 1,149,942 1,138,869
Deferred Rental Income ' 8,400 - '
Accrued expenses

Professional fees (legat and auditfees) 4 1,221,256 1,126,214 579,204

Other operating expenses 367,009 349,104 742,568
Total Accounts Payahle and Accrued Expenses | $£10,339,260 $8,084,887 | PI1,003,597
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